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line as hard as we could to support and help them, and as 
Americans, I know we are proud, as we ought to be proud, of 
that splendid force and the achievements that they have placed 
upon the record, of American history. 

Mr. NEW. Mr. President, I have had it in mind to submit 
some ideas and suggestions of my own concerning the reor
ganization of the Army. The address which has just been de-
livered by the Senator from New York. [Mr. WADSWOBTH], to 
which we have all listened with such interest and so much bene
fit, has made the subject particularly opportune, and I should 
like, under ordinary circumstances, to proceed with my remarks 
at this time. But, Mr. President, the hour of 2 o'clock having
arrived, I realize that there is before the Senate a bill of tran
scendent importance, as I regard it, and I am not willing to 
interpose anything that will interfere with the immediate con
sideration of that measure. 

I therefore content myself at this time by saying that at the 
earliest opportunity I shall ask for the privilege of presenting
the remarks, and in connection therewith I shall submit a bill. 

XEAGTJE Oi" NATIONS. 

Mr. POLLOCK. Mr. President, I have listened with a great 
deal of interest to the narrative of the war by lie Senator from 
New York [Mr. "VVADSWOETH]. It is as he states, largely in 
retrospect. I merely rise to give notice that on to-morrow, im
mediately after the morning business, I shall endeavor to submit 
a few remarks looking to the future and as to what should be 
the course of this Government with reference to the creation of 
a league of nations for the maintenance of the peace of the 
world. 

CALLING OF THE BOLL. 

Mr. CURTIS. Mr. President, I suggest the absence of a quo-
rum. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The absence of a quorum is 
suggested. The Secretary will call the roll. 

The Secretary called the roll and the following Senators an
swered to their names: 
Bankliead Hitchcock Nelson SmootBeckhain Johnson, S. Dak. Now SpencerBorah Jones, N. Mex. Nugent SterlingCalder KeUogg Overman SutherlandChamberlain Kenyon Pago ThomasCulberson King Pittman Thompson
Cummins Klrby Poindexter Townsend
Curtis Knox Pollock Trammell
Fletcher » La Follette Pomerenc Tardaman

France Lenroot Eansdell Walsh
Frelinghuysen McKeUai- Heed Warren

Gay McLean Sanlsbury Weeks

Gore McNary Snafroth Wolcott

Gronna Martin, Ky. Sheppard

Hale Moses Sherman
Henderson Myers Smith, Ariz.


Mr. rOLLOCK. I wish to announce that my colleague, the 
senior Senator from South Carolina [Mr. SMITH], is detained 
by illnessi 

Mr. SAULSBURY. I desire to announce that the senior Sen
ator from Maryland [Mr. SMITH] is detained by illness. 

Mr. KENYON. I wish to announce that the Senator from 
Nebraska [Mr. NOEEIS] is absent on official business. 

Mr. SUTHERLAND. My colleague, the senior Senator from 
West Virginia [Mr. GOIT] , is absent on account of illness. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Sixty-one Senators having an
swered to their names, there is a quorum present. 

VALIDATION OF WAS CONTRACTS. 

The Senate, as in Committee of the Whole, resumed the con
sideration of the bill (H. R. 13274) to provide relief where 
formal contracts have not been made in the manner required 
by law. 

Mr. HENDERSON. Mr. President, on January 20 I sent to 
the desk an amendment to House bill 13274. Yesterday the 
Senator from Nebraska [Mr. HITCHCOCK] Introduced that 
amendment to the bill. In order to protect my amendment, I 
submit an amendment to the amendment of the Senator from 
Nebraska and also one to what is known as the Chamberlain 
bill, so as to perfect the proposed amendment that I had printed 
the other day. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The amendments will be 
ordered printed and lie on the table. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. I think it would be proper to take up
the bill as reported by the committee and have it read for the 
purpose of amendment. The bill has not yet been read, and I 
suggest that it be read for the pvirpose of amendment. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Secretary will read the 
substitute bill. 

The Secretary read the amendment of the Committee on Mili
tary Affairs, which was to strike out all after the enacting clause 
of the bill and in lieu to insert: 

That whenever during the war emergency and prior to November 12,
1918, any Individual, firm, company, corporation or foreign government 
has made an agreement with the Secretary of War, or with any officer 
or agent acting under his authority, or with any agency of the Govern
ment authorized to procure or aid in procuring the same for the War 
Department, for the production, manufacture, sale, acquisition, or control 
of equipment, materials, or supplies, or for services, or for facilities or 
other purposes connected with the prosecution of the war, and such 
agreement was reduced to the form of a contract or accepted procure
ment order and executed or signed on behalf of the Government, but 
the agreement did not comply with statutory requirements, in every 
such case the Secretary of War is authorized and directed to waive,
on behalf of the Government, such noncompliance: Provided, That he 
finds such waiver is not Inconsistent with the public interest, and in this 
event the said agreement shall have the same validity and effect it would 
have had if such statutory requirement had been complied with. 

That whenever, prior to said November 12, 1918, any individual, firm, 
company, corporation, or foreign Government has made any agreement, 
oral or written, express or implied, with, or has received any order or 
request, oral or written, from, the Secretary of War, or any officer, 
agent, or agency as aforesaid, for any of the purposes aforesaid, and 
the same has not been reduced to contract form, but such individual,
firm, company, corporation, or foreign Government has in good faith 
made expenditures, incurred obligations, acquired or furnished facilities,
equipment, materials, or supplies, or rendered services, in reliance on 
such agreement, order, or request. In every such case the Secretary 
of War is authorized and directed, on behalf of the Government, to 
enter into such contract with such individual, firm, company, corpora
tion, or foreign Government as will, under all the circumstances, fairly 
and equitably compensate him or it for the expenditures made, obliga
tions incurred, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished or acquired, 
or services rendered, as aforesaid: Provided, That in no event shall 
such contract provide for compensation on terms more favorable than 
the terms, if any, for which the aforesaid agreement, order, or request 
may have provided. . 

That whenever, prior to said November 12, 1918, the War Depart
ment, through its offlders or agents, has taken possession of any land, 
or whenever the holder or owner of any land has removed from or 
removed any improvements from such land at the order or request of 
the War Department and no valid contract has been made with respect 
thereto, then the Secretary of War, If he finds that the public interest 
does not require the possession or occupancy of such land by tho 
Government, is authorized to make compensation to the owner or holder 
thereof for the fair value of such improvements so removed and the 
expense incurred by such owner in removing therefrom or for the fair 
value of the use of such land of which the War Department has taken 
actual possession and for any expense or loss incurred by the owner or 
holder by reason of such possession. 

SEC. 2. That a commission is hereby created and established, to be 
known as the War Contracts Appeals Commission (hereinafter referred 
to as the commission), -which shall be composed of three members, who 
shall be appointed by the President, by and with the advice and con-
sent of the Senate, and shall continue in office for one year from the 
date of this act. One member of the commission shall represent the 
War Department, one member shall represent the Department of 
Justice, and one member shall represent the business interests of the 
country. None of the members of the commission shall be interested 
In any order, contract, or agreement within the purview of this act 
or have any interest in any firm or corporation naving such orders, 
contracts, or agreements. Each member of the commission shall re
ceive a salary of $7,500 a year, payable in the same manner as the 
salaries of judges of the courts of the United States. The commission 
shall choose a chairman from its own membership and may appoint a 
secretary, who shall receive a salary not exceeding $5,000. a year, to 
be determined by the commission and payable in the same manner as 
the salaries of the members of the commission. 

That there Is hereby appropriated, for the purpose of defraying the 
reasonable expenses of the commission, Including the payment of 
salaries herein authorized, out of any money in the Treasury of the 
United States not otherwise appropriated, available immediately and 
until expended, the sum of $50,000. 

That within 30 days of the date when the Secretary of War tenders 
any contract or compensation as provided In this act, or refuses to 
tender such contract or compensation, the party to whom said contract 
or compensation is tendered or refused, or the Government by a duly
authorized officer from the Department of Justice may file with th9 
chairman of the commission a notice of appeal: Provided, however,
That if the representative of the Department of Justice agrees with the 
action of the War Department there shall be no appeal by the Govern
ment, but settlement can be made at once. Thereupon, the commission 
shall proceed to examine and review the facts and circumstances of 
the case and make its award or finding thereon. Upon giving receipt 
in full of all demands against the United States arising out of the 
transaction by reason of which the award is made, the appellant shall 
be entitled to receive the amount of any award so made, and the proper,
officer of the United States is hereby authorized and directed to pay
the same but if the appellant Is dissatisfied with the amount so 
awarded he shall be paid 75 per cent of the amount awarded and shall 
be entitled to sue the United States in the Court of Claims to recover 
such further sum as added to said 75 per cent shall make up such, 
amount as will be fair and just compensation aa provided in this act, 
and the Court of Claims is hereby given jurisdiction to hear said suit 
and render judgment therein. . . .  . 

That whenever any dispute arises In the matter of the adjustment or 
settlement or as the Interpretation or application of tbe terms, of 
any contract which has been made for any of tbe purposes set forth in 
this act and in the execution of which there has been compliance with 
statutory requirements, the contractor or the Government by a duly,
authorized officer from the Department of Justice may give notice to the 
Secretary of War of intention to appeal to the commission, and pro
vided notice of appeal is filed with the chairman of tbe commission 
within 30 days: Provided, however, That if the representative of the 
Department of Justice agrees with the action of the War Department 
there shall be no appeal by the Government but settlement can be 
made at once. On an appeal being taken the commission shall there-
upon proceed to determine the questions at issue as set forth in said 
notice of appeal; and the contractor shall be entitled either to receive 
the whole amount of such award as may be made as in full of bis 
claim on the questions submitted or 75 per cent of the same and sue 
the United States in tbe Court of Claims for any remainder, all as 
provided next above as to agreements otherwise within tbe purview of 

Tlmt In executing the duties and powers conferred by this act the 
commission, may mate its own rules and regulations and may hear and 
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determine issues informally. It shall be the duty of the Secretary of
War to furnish to the commission sucli evidence, documents, or papers
pertaining to transactions as to which notice of appeal has been tiled 
as the commission may request. The commission is authorized, in its
discretion, to appoint an examiner in any region or district -when such
region is. within the United States where, in its Judgment, the taking
of additional testimony is necessary to the determination of any case.
Such examiner shall be a resident ox the region or district for which be
is appointed, and shall not have any interest, directly or indirectly, in 
any contract or transaction coming before him or receive any compen
sation save and except such pet diem compensation and expenses as
shall be fixed by the commission. Whenever the commission shall refer 
to any such examiner any claim presented iereunder, the examiner shall
proceed, under the direction of the commission, to hear the parties,
take the proofs, and return the same to the commission with bis recom
mendations thereon as promptly as possible. 
.-•SEC. 3. That nothing in this act contained shall be held to validate 
any such contract unless the officer who was at the time of the making
of such contract the chief of the division or bureau, as the case may
be, in which said contract was negotiated, or, in the event that such
officer was not responsible for the making of such contract, then the
officer in such division or bureau who was so responsible, together with
the officer who signed said contract, shall each severally make and sub-
scribe to an affidavit in writing, giving the definite terms of such con-
tract, the name or names within his knowledge, of any such officer or
officers who took part in the negotiation or making of the same, and
stating whether or not within his knowledge any officer aiding in such
making was interested, directly or indirectly, in said contract, and in
addition subscribing to an oath to be appended to said affidavit in sub
stantially the following form and tenor: 

" I, , Chief of the Division or Bureau (naming ft) in which
the contract hereinbefore mentioned was negotiated, at the time of ne
gotiation thereof, and the officer in the Division or Bureau (naming if
responsible for the making of the contract hereinbefore mentioned, am 
I, -, the officer who actually signed said contract, do hereby eachseverally swear that I am sot and was not at the time of the making
of said contract directly or indirectly interested in said contract." 

That in respect to any such contract as to which any one ot said offi
cers can not take the foregoing oath, or after diligent search or inquiry
*y the contractor ean not be tound, or is at the time actually engaged
in foreign service, or .refuses to take said oath, then upon such facts 
and the fact reguired in the oath of such officer, appearing fey an affi
davit of the contractor, or of one of Its partners, ebief officers, or chief 
agents acting in its Behalf, the Secretary of War shall promptly report 
such contract to the War Contracts Appeals Commission and furnish 
to said commission such evidence, documents, and papers pertaining to
tkt transaction as may be -within his control, and such commission may
request, and original jurisdiction is hereby vested in, said commission 
to hear and determine said claim with the powers and upon the moee
dure hereinbefore described in this act. Said commission shall mate its 
award or finding thereon and deny said claim or grant tt in whole or
in part, according to toe justice and equity thereof, and the award or
finding shall have the same force and effect and create the same rights 
as if made under the provisions of section '3 of this act. Amd it shall
be the further duty of said commission in hearing, investigating, and
determining such claim to find and determine whether any of such offi
cers is or was at the time of making of said contract directly or
indirectly interested in said contract. 

SEC. i. That nothing in this act contained shall be construed to re
lieve any officer or agent -of the Government from iprosecution under the 
penal statutes of the •Raited States for any fraud, criminal conduct,
illegality, or Irregularity in connection with any of the agreements or
orders Teferred to herein or the execution or signing thereof. 

Mr. MtiKELLAR. Mr. President, if it is in order, I desire to 
offer an amendment to the pending bill, on page 10, .Hne 5, to 
strifce not the period and make a semicolon, and to add what I 
send to the desk. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER (Mr. NEW in the chair). The 
amendment will be stated. 

The SECJJETAKT. On page 10, Hue 5, before the period, ana 
after the word " possible," it is proposed to insert: 

Provided., That in,no ease, hnwever, shall.any award either by the
Secretary et Wa-r or by the commission or the Court of Claims include
prospective or possible .profits on any part of the contract beyond the
goods and supplies delivered to and accepted by the United States, and a
remuneration for expenditures necessarily Incurred in preparing to per-
form said contract or order so canceled. 

Mr. McKELLAK. That is the provision that is in the -Hitch-
cock amendment, and it should be inserted here. I think no 
one will say that there should be a payment for prospective or 
speculative profits. This is the matter as to which the Senator 
from Wisconsin [Mr. LENBOOT] and others argued on yesterday, 
and I hope the chairman of the committee will accept the pro-
vision. ' . • • 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. I think I have no objection to the first 
part of the amendment, but the latter part of the amendment is 
even broader than the Senator from Wisconsin argued for. I 
clo not think it ought to be included in the bill. 

Mr. POMER.ENE. I ask to have the amendment again re-
reported. 

The PRESIDING; OFFICER. The Secretary will again state 
the amendment. 

The Secretary again stated the amendment proposed by Mr. 
CKEH B. 
Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. The latter part of the amendment I 

our not willing to accept.Ml>- McKBLLAB. Are th«j words to which the Senator from 
Oregon objects the words " and a remuneration for expenditures 
necessarily incurred in preparing to perform said contract or 
.order so canceled "5 

•Mr.- CHAMBERLAIN. Take one illustration. I understand: 
mat m some cases the Government of the United States has 

insisted that a contractor shall go ahead and use patents that 
had been obtained and issued in the names of other parties, and 
that the Government would stand behind the contractors to 
defend them against any proceedings that might be instituted 
to recover penalties or royalties. I think the Senator's amend
ment goes to an extent that it would preclude recovery in cases 
of that kind. 

Mr. McKELLAR. I do Dot think so. If the Senator will 
look at lines 10, 11, and 12, I think he will find the language 
there,is .sufficient to include the objects which the Senator sug
gests. It .provides for remuneration. It requires the Govern^ 
ment to naa&e " remuneration for expenditures necessarily ia. 
curred in preparing to perform said contract or order so can
celed." I should think that that language would be broad 
enough. 

Mr. CHAMBERiLAIN. It in part nullifies the provisioas of the 
bill, just as it nullifies the provisions of the Hitchcock bill itself,
if it be inserted in It. It ought not to be in fcere. I am perfectly
willing to accept that portion of the amendment which refers 
to prospective or possible profits on unperformed portions of a 
contract. I think that Is as far as it ought to go. 

Mr. FRELJNGHUXSEN. Will the Senator from Tennessee 
suffer an Interruption? 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Does the Senator from Tennes
see yield to the Senator from New Jersey? 

Mr. McKELLAR;! yield to the Senator. 
Mr. FRELINGBUTSBN. Mr. President, I understand the 

effect of this amendment would be the same practically as sec
tion 6 of the Hitchcock substitute? 

Mr. McKEIXAR. I t merely includes the Secretary of War. 
It is ffie exact wording «£ the Hitchcock substitute, except that 
•the words " and the Secretary of War " are added for the pur
pose of making It apply to the Chamberlain bill. 

Mr. FRELINi&ttU X SEN. Mr. President, I am not defending
the validation of any unearned profits, nor do I believe that any
<it the great profits which might accrue to a contractor by rea
son of She validation of a contract or a contract that can not be 
canceled should be paid, but there are certain contracts which,
I understand, have been made by the Secretary of War—verbal 
agreements, probably some -of them agreements by letter—that 
involve an adjustment of profits. I do not know what those 
contracts are. I only know that the Secretary of War states 
that some of those contracts have been made by reason of the 
fact that the department had to induce contractors to change 
their method of manufacture, to change their machinery, to en-
large their plants, aud that certain promises and assurances 
have been made to those .contractors. 

Now, I want this Bill so written that it shall not repudiate 
those agreements; that those agreements may be adjusted either 
by the Secretary of War or by this proposed commission. A 
repudiation of any agreement of that character would involve 
the good faith of the Government when It has been pledged by 
•an agent of the Government. 

I wrote to the Assistant Secretary of War, Mr. Crowe!!. 
might say, if I aan aot encroaching too much on the Senator's 
time in this connection, the Assistant Secretary of War lias 
?iven a great deal of attention to the adjustment of these con-
tracts, :and he has accomplished a great deal in ascertaining the 
facts regarding them. Many of them are ready for settlement 
as soon as they are validated. In reply to my query, the Assist-
ant Secretary of War sent me the letter which I hold in my
hand, In regard to section 6 of the Hitchcock bill, which is 
practically the same in effect as the amendment proposed by
the Senator from Tennessee [Mr. MCKEIXAB]. I desire to aste 
the Secretary to read this letter, if the Senator from Tennessee 
has no objection. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER (Mr. WorooTT in the chair). 
Without objection, the Secretary will read as requested. 

The Secretary read as follows: 
W E DEPAETMEST,

OFFICF OF THE ASSISTANT SECBETABT, 
DlBECTOa OF MBKITIONH, 

Washington, D. 0., January ss, 1010. 
Hon. JuSJiPH S. FUELrNGHCl'SEX, 

United States -Senate,Washington, D. C. 
M DEAR SENATOR : You have asked my views as to the effect of sec

tion 6 of the Hitchcock bill. This bill gives to a proposed commission
complete jurisdiction over the adjustments of all contracts, valid and
invalid, entered into by the War Department for war supplies which are
suspended, canceled, or terminated prior to complete execution, by rea
son of the termination of hostilities. Section ts provides that neither
the commission nor the Court of Claims shall make any allowance la 
such cases for any profit to the contractor other than on goods and
supplies actually delivered to the United States with the remuneration
for expenses necessarily incurred in preparing to perform tue contract 
or order that is canceled. Under this provision, though a contractor, 
may have employed large amounts of his capital and months of haxcl 
work upon the work in process, he is to be permitted no reward what-
ever for such use of his capital and for such services where the con* 

 I 
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tract is terminated before the actual delivery of supplies. In the 
event that any supplies are delivered his reward is limited to that 
part of his capital and services which go to the completion of those 
supplies, and no reward is permitted for the use of that part of his 
capital and his services which nre embodied in work in process, the 
completion of which is abandoned at the direction of the Government. 
Such a restriction would involve direct violation of obligations entered 
into by the American Expeditionary Force with foreign governments 
and with the citizens of foreign, countries, and would cast a reflection 
upon the good name of this Government, which I believe Congress would 
regret Just as much as this department. 

As to contracts in this country, the standard termination clause in 
use by the department provides for the allowance to the contractor of 
a certain percentage of the cost to the contractor of materials, unfin
ished articles of work in process, and component parts furnished by
the contractor and on hand, which are in compliance with provisions 
o f th  e contract and specifications. This allowance is by way of com
pensation for the use of the capital furnished by the contractor and 
the services rendered by him in the performance of work for the 
Government which at its instance is not completed. 

It seems to me that section 6 would impair the obligation of such 
contracts. The good faith of the Government seems equally involved 
where work hag been undertaken by contractors on the faith of receiv
ing a contract in this form and where the armistice has interposed 
to prevent its actual execution. 

Very truly, yours, 
BENEDICT CROWELL,

The Assistant Secretary of War, Director of Munitions. 

Mr. HITCHCOCK. Mr. President-
The PRESIDING OFFICER. Does the Senator from Ten

nessee yield to the Senator from Nebraska? 
Mr. McKEIXAR. I yield to tlie Senator. 
Mr. HITCHCOCK. The Assistant Secretary of War ismis

taken when lie refers to my bill as covering legal contracts. 
One of the differences between the bill proposed by me andthe 
substitute reported by the committee is that mine is limited 
to those cases in which the contracts are defective or the orders 
are informal. The House bill, like my bill, only covers those 
cases.  It does not attempt to cover cases where there is a legal 
contract providing the terms under which it may be adjusted. 

Mr. LENROOT. Mr. President . 
Mr. McKELLAR. I yield to the Senator from Wisconsin, 

who has some suggestion to make about the matter, I believe. 
Mr. LENROOT. I should like to suggest to the Senator that, 

while his amendment as incorporated in the Hitchcock amend
ment covered only contracts defectively executed, when offered 
as an amendment to the committee bill it also covers contracts 
fully executed in compliance with all statutory requirements. 

do not believe the Senator would desire to have Congress 
abrogate a legal right, and I therefore wish to ask the Senator 
whether he will not accept an amendment to his amendment 
adding these words: 
. . Provided, The foregoing shall uot npply to any contract executed in 
compliance with all statutory requirements. 

Mr. McKELLAR. That amendment will be entirely satis
factory, although I think the same result could be perhaps ac
complished by having my amendment read: 

That in no case of a contract validated by this act—: 
And so forth. Probably that would make it shorter; but the 

Senator's amendment covers it absolutely. 
Mr. HITCHCOCK. Mr. President, I think the Senator from 

Wisconsin will have to qualify his proposed amendment to the 
amendment. I understand that there are some contracts en
tirely legal in form which contain no provision for cancellation 
and the settlement of damages; so that the only exception 
should be those cases covered by contract. 
. Mr. McKELLAR. The Senator from Nebraska is entirely

right about that. As I recall the testimony, there are only a 
very small number of contracts legally drawn and executed 
that have the cancellation provision; in other words, I think 
only until recently, I think in October 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. In July. 
Mr. McKELLAR. The Senator from Oregon corrects me, 

and I am sure that he knows the fact—in July they adopted a 
new form of contract, which contained a cancellation provision. 
All the contracts up to that time contained no cancellation 
provision. 

Mr. LENROOT. Mr. President, may I ask the Senator if he 
thinks that as to any contract that is legally executed Congress 
now can change the measure of damages to which a contractor 
may be entitled? 

Mr. McKELLAR. That is perhaps true. When a contract 
lias already been signed and is valid, while Congress under the 
Constitution can impair the obligation of such a contract, yet 
we do not permit the States to do so, and therefore it would 
not be proper for us to do so, either as a matter of policy or on 
any other ground. 

Mr. LENROOT. I appreciate that. If an amendment is in 
order, Mr. President, I will offer such as an amendment. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Does the Senator from Ten
nessee yield to the Senator from Wisconsin ? 
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Mr. McKELLAR. I will accept the amendment offered by
the Senator. 

Mr. LENBOOT. Very well. Then I wish to ask the Senator 
whether he will uot accept another amendment? 

Mr. McKELLAR. Perhaps it would be better to have the 
amendment already presented adopted. 

Mr. POMERENE. Let me ask to have the amendment to the 
amendment again stated. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without objection, the Secre
tary will state the amendment offered by the Senator from 
Wisconsin to the amendment of the Senator from Tennessee. 

The SECRETARY. At the end of the amendment offered by. 
Mr. MCKEIIAB, it is proposed to insert the following proviso: 

Provided, The foregoing shall not apply to any contract -executed in 
compliance with all statutory requirements. 

So that it will read: 
That in no case, however, shall any award, either by the Secretary 

of War or by the commission or the Court of Claims, include pros
pective or possible profits, on any part of the contract beyond the goods 
and supplies delivered to and accepted by the United States, and a 
remuneration for expenses necessarily incurred in preparing to perform 
said contract or order so canceled: Provided, The foregoing shall 
not apply to any contract executed in compliance with all statutory
requirements. ... . 

Mr. MoKELLAR. Mr. President, I wish to make a statement 
with reference to the letter written by the Assistant Secretary 
of War. I do not agree with his construction of section 6. I 
do not know whether or llot the Assistant Secretary of War, 
who is a very fine gentleman, is a lawyer; but if he is, he 
has very incorrectly interpreted the meaning, as I believe, of 
section 6, because I think the last three lines in section 6 
cover exactly the case which the Senator from New Jersey
[Mr. FBELINGHTITSEN] suggested awhile ago, where it provides 
that such proper remuneration can be made. Section 6 does 
cut out prospective or possible profits, and I think it ought to 
do so. There ought not to*be any prospective or possible profits 
allowed in these settlements. 

Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. Mr. President 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. Does the Senator from Ten

nessee yield to the Senator from New Jersey? 
Mr. McKELLAR. I yield to the Senator. 
Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. Possibly the Senator is correct. 

My anxiety is only to avoid any statutory prohibition which 
will work an injustice on a contractor who, in good faith, has 
gone ahead and expended his capital in order to provide mate-
rials upon an order from the Secretary ofWar. 

Mr. McKELLAR. I will say to the Senator that I join him 
in that. I am just as anxious to protect the rights of con-
tractors as anyone else could be; and I think they ought to be 
protected. At the same time I think the rights of the Govern
ment should be protected in like manner and a provision should 
be enacted that will be fair for all alike. 

Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. I am not seeking to have the Gov
ernment's rights invaded in any way whatsoever. 

Mr. McKELLAR. I am sure of that. 
Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. ButI aminformed by the Secretary 

of War that there are certain contracts—verbal contracts, I be
lieve—which have been made, where assurances have been given 
to the contractor of certain profits, where no cancellation has 
been agreed upon. In order to get the materials and supplies, 
they have been compelled to give a quantity order; and they feel 
that when they cancel that order, having no agreement as to 
cancellation, there should be some adjustment as to profits with-
out their being compelled to take the full order which they 
agreed to take. Does the Senator understand the situation? 

Mr. McKELLAR. I understand that situation. 
Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. Now, I claim that if the Secretary 

of War has made any such agreement involving the payment 
of profits, which according to the technical provisions of this 
act may be unearned, it is unfair to write such a prohibitory sec
tion in this law. 

Mr. McKELLAR. Do I understand the Senator to mean that 
the Secretary of AVar has entered into a contract giving to the 
contractor prospective or possible profits on the unearned por
tions of the contract?  I t is inconceivable to me that the Secre
tary of War would do such a thing. 

Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. I understand that there have been 
some orders given for a certain quantity of materials—let us 
assume, for illustration, a million yards of cloth. The manufac
turer has bought the machinery and increased his facilities. 

Mr. McKELLAR. That is all provided for here. 
Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. The Secretary of War has stated 

that he would take that million yards of cloth, and thecon
tractor has practically figured his profits on that million yards 
of cloth upon the assurance that the Secretary of War would 
accept delivery. Now, there is no provision for cancellation. 

I
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IH.ps the Senator believe that, that contractor should be pro
hibited from receiving his pvofit.s on that, million yards of cloth 
when he has bought the materials and put the machinery in his 

Mr. McKELLAR. Let me see if I understand the Senator. 
If 1 understand the Senator correctly, I most certainly do be
lieve that the Secretary of War ought not to permit any such 
possible profits to be allowed to the contractor. 

Let us assume that a mill has put in $5,000 worth of machinery 
on a very large order and it is only out the $5,000, and that much 
of Hie machinery can be used by the contractor, as shown by
the facts, and if he had carried out his entire contract with the 
Government he would have had half a million dollars of profits, 
poes the Senator mean to say that we ought to validate a eon-
tract that would permit this contractor on an expenditure of 
$5,000 for machinery which he still owns to reap from the Gov
ernment $500,000 of possible or expected profits? 

If that is what the Senator means, I most emphatically say I 
do not agree to any such proposition. 

Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. Of course, the Senator has inflated 
the figures somewhat, but I do not mean to assume that at all. 
I mean that when the Secretary of War has given a con-
tractor the assurance that he will make certain profits by giv
ing him a quantity order, and he has expended for machinery 
or for changes in his mill an amount of money practically in 
excess op the profit to be derived, it is a proper case for ad
justment, and possibly some unearned profits may have to be 
paid in order to do justice to that contractor. Therefore I say
that cases of this character should be subject to an appeal to 
the commission and should not be made the subject of a pro
hi'iitory statute. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. Mr. President, may I interrupt the 
Senator for just, a moment? 

Mr. McKELLAR. 1 yield; surely. 
Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. Let me ask the Senator what he 

would do in a case of this kind, which I put by way of illus
tration, where a contractor has been contracted with to supply 
a very large amount of shells, for instance. He goes to work 
and he supplies the Government one-half of the goods in that 
line tliat he has already manufactured and has on the ground. 
What is the Senator going to do with a man of that kind? This 
amendment provides that there shall be no profits on any part 
of the contract beyond the goods and supplies delivered to and 
accepted by the Government. 

Mr. McKELLAR. Oh, no; the Senator misinterprets the 
language. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. No. 
Mr. McKELLAR (reading) — 
Ueyond the goods and supplies delivered to mul accepted i\v llio 

United States 
Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. Certainly.

Mr. McKELLAR. That is one, and what ciseV Why

A remuneration for expenditures necessarily incurred iu preparing to


perform said contract or order 
That takes in all that the Senator means. 
Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. I beg the Senator's pardon. The 

first part of his provision provides only for the reimbursement 
of the contractor for the goods actually manufactured, delivered 
to, supplied, and received by the Government. Now, where these 
goods are on the ground and have not been delivered or ac
cepted there is no compensation provided for at all. 

The latter part of this section to which the Senator calls 
attention has reference to the expenditures made by a man to 
increase his plant, for instance; and if the Senator is looking 
to the protection of the Government, lie mulcts the Government 
*>>' that last provision. Why? 

Suppose a manufacturer or contractor has gone to work and 
•peut a million dollars in the enlargement of his plant. That 
«as been necessary to carry out the contract that he had with 
*oo Government. Now, then, the Government cancels his con
wact. He has not used or utilized the extended plant, and the 
"overnment must pay him for nil of it, notwithstanding there 
Sr. o ° a v e r  y l !u '£p salvage. Now, there is the instance where 
"»« Government i.s imposed upon, and in the first part of it the 

if  » t o r is imposed upon.
MV. McKELLAR. Mr. President, I think the Senator doe* not 
*, , w- m i  1 meaning of this section. 
;., • 1'OMKRENE. Mr. President— 
•̂•'t; ^RESIDING OFFICER. Does the Senator from Ten-

Mr Af(?1<' *° t l10 S c n a t o  r f r o t» Ohio?i:i) nst one moment. Let me reply to the 
$p»go •

 M(-"KKLLAR. .Tnst just a moment. Let me replythteo the.....;  Oregon for  one moment.  1. will read  Ian
-'Wni'o* }" n!' i : '*°  1|OW°vor. shall any award, either l.y the Secretary of

fosslblo n.. n ''"""''i^ioii «r the Court of Claims, include prospective or
"- Mums on siny part of the contract— 

Now, wait a minute. We are not talking now about real 
profit--. We are not limiting the real profits that are made on it. 
We are limit ing. in the latter part of this section, only the pos
sible or prospective profits. That is the only limitation that is 
in this section— 

Prospective or possible profits on any part of the contract beyond the 
goods .and supplies delivered to mid accepted by the fnited States, ,iit<l— 

In addition to that— 
a remuneration for expenditures necessarily inclined in preparing to 
perform said contract or order so canceled. 

Under that provision—and I will yield to the Senator from 
Ohio in just a moment—every justice can be done the contractor. 
He is remunerated, given his real profit; full justice can be done 
to him, full justice can be done to the Government; but it does 
not provide that he shall receive the kind of profits that I have 
suggested a few moments ago, where u man puts $5,000, for 
instance, into the increase of his plant on an order that might 
involve a million dollars when completed. It might take two or 
three years to complete it. He may have a half million dollars 
of prospective profits if he completes the order, but he has put 
only $5,000 into it. It may be that he has put only $1,000 into it, 
to use an extreme case; and yet is it to be arranged so that he 
can, under the terms of this validating act, receive §500,000 of 
prospective profits? 

I do not. think the Senator contends that he should do it, 
say that we ought to pay the contractor liberally; we ought to 
pay him well; we ought to pay him everything that is due him 
and give him a profit on it; but we ought not to give him a i»os
sible or prospective profit on unearned portions of his contract. 
This is what this section prohibits, and it ought to be adopted. 

I now yield to the Senator from Ohio. 
Mr. POMERENE. Mr. President, I think certainly the Senator 

will have to amend his proposed amendment quite a good dea!. 
Mr. McKELLAR. If the Senator will offer some amendments 

that will be good, I shall be delighted to accept them. 
Mr. POMERENE. I will make a suggestion that I know the 

Senator will think is right. 
Mr. McKELLAR. I will admit anything that is right to carry 

out that purpose. 
Mr. POMERENE. Suppose, as a matter of fact, a concern is 

manufacturing cannon. They have to go through many -proc
esses, I understand. I do not know anything about the manu
facture of them. They may have their shops filled with cannon 
that are half completed. They have not been delivered to or 
accepted by the Government. They are there in an uncom
pleted state. The material of the contractor is in them, and a 
large part of his labor is in them. Now, it does seem to mo 
that the contractor ought to be allowed a reasonable profit wpon 
that work and material, even if the goods have not as yet been 
delivered to or accepted by the Government. 

Mr. McKELLAR. There is not any difference between thf. 
Senator and myself on Hint subject. If the Senator will read 
this provision carefully and give it the core that he usually does,
being the very able lawyer that he is, I am quite sure there will 
be no difference between us on that subject. This section refers 
to prospective or possible profits;. It refers to daydreams of 
contractors—a man who has a contract of $100,000 and expects 
to make a million dollars out of it, especially if he has not done 
the work. It just does away with that kind of thing; but it 
does not prevent the contractor from getting the profits to which 
he is entitled. 

Mr. POMERENE. It does not on the goods which are deliv
ered, but it does prevent his getting any profits on the goods 
that are only half completed. That is my objection. 

Mr. McKELLAR. Oh, no: it is only prospective or possible 
profits. That is all it refers to. 

Mr. POMERENE. I think the Senator is wrong. 
Mr. CUMMINS. Mr. President 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. Does the Senator from Ten

nessee yield to the Senator front Iowa? 
Mr. McKELLAR. I yield to the Senator. I was about to 

yield (ho floor. I will yield the door to the Senator. 
Mr. CUMMINS. I wish to ask this Question of the Senator 

from Tennessee, because he has the faculty of very clear state
ment, and I am deeply interested in this bill, because there are 
a good many people in my State who are in grave danger of 
suffering a loys which they can not easily bear. 

Mr. McKELLAR. I will say to the Senator that I nin the 
last man in the world to make any contractor bear a loss which 
lie should not hear. 

Mr. CUMMINS. I do not know much about these matters. 
The members of the Military Affairs Committee are a great 
deal more competent than 1 am to apply thix language to the 
actual cases. What I should like to know is this, and I ask it 

 I 
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both in regard to the committee amendment and in regard to For instance, take the one that is in the RECORD to-day, if 
the proposed Hitchcock auiendinent: 

Is it tin1 purpose of the proposer of tlie 'amendment to put 
those who have entered into contracts or partial contracts with 
iho Government in precisely the same situation or condition 
iis though the acts which had been performed by both parties 
had been performed between private individuals and allow the 
individual to recover from the Government the damages or 
Josses u]K)u recognized principles of the law which would be 
recoverable if the same things had been done between two i>er
sons instead of between a person and the Government? If the 
•Senator from Tennessee will explain that to me, I shall be a 
jjood deal better able to follow the language of these bills and 
reach a conclusion as to which one will be most equitable. 

Mr. McKELLAR. Mr. President, I shall take great pleasure 
in giving" the Senator my views. 

Generally speaking, that is the purpose of both bills. They 
ciin not be put in the same position as those who have valid 
contracts. To illustrate what I mean, the greater portion of 
these properly signed contracts are contracts without any can
cellation clause at all. A grosser piece of negligence can hardly 
be imagined. Here we have given unlimited sums of money to 
the departments to furnish lawyers, and how, even by accident, 
a cancellation clause could have been left out, of the contracts 
it is difficult to see. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. Mr. President, let me make this state
ment to the Senator about that: The Secretary advises me 
that a great many of the contracts made prior to the 1st 
of July last had the cancellation clause in them, but that since 
that; time all of them have. 

Mr. McKKLLAR. Well, that is not the proof before our sub-
committee; that is all I can say. The proof before our sub-
committee is that comparatively few of the valid contracts have 
the cancellation clause. 

Mr. CUMMINS. I will ask the Senator to make that just a 
Hide clearer to me about the cancellation. Does the Senator 

. mean a cancellation clause that would permit the termination 
of the contract without any damages? 

Mr. McKELLAR. Oh, no; providing for the damages and 
providing (he conditions and methods of procedure and all 
about how they should be computed. All of those things are 
provided for in the cancellation clause; and in every contract 
that is prepared by fi lawyer there is a cancellation provision, 
us every lawyer knows. As I say, it is absolutely inconceivable 
to me why they wefe not in all the contracts'; but they are 
nor. and we need not bother about the water that has passed 
the mill. 

I might say to the Senator right there that, of course, any vali
dating of si contract that has a cancellation clause in it but is 
improperly signed would not put it on an exact equality with the 
good contract, the properly executed contract, that has no can
cellation clause; so wo can not put; them back exactly as they 
were. It is impossible to do that. What is proposed by both 
bills, however, is to see that every contractor in this country who 
has done work for this Government shall be fully and amply 
paid. We want them to receive a profit on what they have done 

" "for tfie Government. The subcommittee of which the Senator 
irom Nebraska [Mr. HITCHCOCK], the Senator from New Jersey 
IMr. KKCT.IXGHUYSEN], and myself were members, pursued that 
policy, it was the purpose of the committee to do it; and we 
instituted this commission, following out the precedent, because 
there WiLS after ( h  0 c l v i  l W a r , as I understand, a commission 
with independent authority and original jurisdiction created for 
that purpose; and then after the Spanish-American War there 

i d d t  i i 
p i c a n War there

hwas an independent commission, jusj t such a one as the Hitch-
cock amendment undertakes to create here, provided to do exact 
.•justice, as far as that could be done, between the Government 
and the contractor. There is not a purpose on the part of any-
one to do anything that is unjust. It is merely a difference of 
opinion as to how it can best be done. 

Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN rose. 
Mr. McKELLAR. Will the Senator excuse me just a moment? 

1 have a matter that I want to bring before the Senate, and then 
1 will yield to him. 

>«"ow, I say " all contracts." There is one class of contracts 
that both amendments except from that rule, and that is con-
tracts that have been fraudulently made or contracts that have 
been made contrary to the statutes—not simply not carrying out 
the statutes but that have been made in violation of the statutes, 
which are equivalent to fraudulent, contracts. The bill, in the 
iourth section, I believe, or the third section, provides what 
shall be done even in the case of those contracts; for instance, 

you gentlemen are interested in it. and will look it up—the case 
of John C. McCubbin, who was an officer of the Standard Sani
tary Co., recommended by the officers of that nnn to come down 
here and become a purchasing agent for the Government in con
nection with enamel ware. He came down here, became a major 
in that deportment, bought all of his goods fronv the concern 
which he represented, and is going back, as soon as he is released, 
to that concern. I think there was something like .$800,000 
worth bought from that concern and .$34,000 worth bought from 
all the other concerns of like kind in the country. Maj. Mc-
Cubbin, according to the proof here, was not representing the 
Government, though he was an officer sworn to represent it, but 
he was virtually an officer of the United States representing his 
own concern. 

A Senator asks me if he called for bids. Oh, no; he simply 
bought outright from his own concern. 

Now, even in the case of a contract like that, what do we do? 
Take a contractor like that. He comes in with unclean hands. 
In my judgment, that officer ought to be court-martialed and sent 
cut of the Army ; and yet, with a contract like that, the desire of 
the committee was to do equal and exact justice to a contractor 
of that kind; and we provided here that the Secretary of War 
shall segregate even that kind of a contract and submit it to this 
commission; but if the commission finds, notwithstanding the 
circumstances under which the contract was obtained from She 
Government, that they have done something or furnished goods 
for which the Government ought to pay, the commission is al
lowed to pay for them. It could not be fairer. 

Mr. CUMMINS. Mr. President, no one could have any sym
pathy with that sort of contract; and I not only have no de
fense to make of a proceeding of that kind, but I should like very 
clearly to differentiate such contracts from the ordinary obliga
tions which have been entered into. 

Mr. McKELLAR. Will the Senator excuse me just a minute? 
If he will look into this bill, the Hitchcock bill, and the Cham

berlain bill, too, that class of contracts is very clearly differen
tiated from the other classes, and it ought to be. My natural 
propensity, anyone's natural propensity, would be, in a case like 
that, to say, " You come in here with unclean hands. You can 
not recover anything from the Government"; but we do not do 
that. We put it in the power of this independent commission 
which we create to deal fairly even with that man, notwithstand
ing he comes in with unclean hands. 

Mr. CUMMINS. I am not speaking of any such ca*e. I am 
speaking, of an honest contract: but section 0 provides : 

That in no rase, however, shall any award either by the commission 
or the Court of Claims Include prospective or possible profits on any iiart 
of the contract beyond the goods and supplies received and actually
delivered. 

Mr. McKELLAR. The Senator does not read it all. Will not 
the Senator do the provision the justice to read it all ? 

Mr. CUMMINS (reading)— 
lleyoml the goods and supplies received aud actually delivered tothe 

Uuite'd States, and a remuneration for expenses necessarily incurred in 
preparing to perform said contract or order so canceled. 

Mr. McKELLAR. Yes. 
Mr. CUMMINS. I am speaking, mark you, of an honest con-

tract made properly or validated properly under this bill. 
Mr. McKELLAR. Surely. 
Mr. CUMMINS. I understood the Senator a moment ago to 

say that in such a case he wanted to put the contractor and 
the Government in exactly the same position as though the 
contract had been made between two individuals, and allow a 
recovery from the Government of those damages which, under 
recognized principles of the law, would be recoverable. It was 
that thought which led me to make the inquiry. Now, I think 
the Government of the United States ought to be just as honest 
as an individual. 

Mr. McKELLAK. I do, too. 
Mr. CUMMINS. It can not, of course, always be sued. It 

has some immunities in that respect; but whenever wo find a 
contract that would be enforceable between private persons, I 
think the Government ought to pay just the same damage and 
upon the same rule which its courts would enforce against a 
private person who had violated his contract or who had failed 
to carry it out. 

Mr. McKELLAR. I agree with the Senator entirely. 
Mr. CUMMINS. This section will not do that. 
Mr. McKELLAR. No; the Senator is entirely mistaken about 

it. If the Senator  read the  case, in Twowill simply  Cramp
where a concern sent its officer down here, and lie became a hundred and sixteenth United States, page 404, lie will find that 
dollar-n year man, and then, after that, became an officer of the the Supreme Court has definitely held that the departments can 
Army. not allow unliquidated damages. 



1919. CONGRESSIONAL 

Mr. CUMMINS. I am not speaking about the law. Let the 
law come as it will; it will be administered either by the com 
mission or the Court of Claims. 

Mr. McKELLAR. If we give the commission the right to 
consider prospective or possible profits our action is final. 
want to leave it where the law is, and that is what this section 
does. It puts them exactly where the law leaves them and 
where the other settlements are left. 

Mr. CUMMINS. You can not put them above the law. 
Mr. McKELLAR. But we can prepare a law especially for 

them, and if the Senate strikes out section 6 and we adopt the 
provision of the House, there will be a special law in their 
favor in so far as possible or prospective profits are con
cerned. 

Mr. CUMMINS. Where is that found? I am asking purely
for information. Where do we make a special law for the re
covery of damages in such a case? 

Mr. McKELLAR. The Secretary of War, under the terms of 
the bill, is given the power to allow such damages and profits 
as be may see fit upon the cancellation of the contract unless 
limited. When I say the Secretary of War, we known the Secre
tary of War does not do it, but some second lieutenant or major 
or captain. For instance, if it is enamel ware, this man McCubbin 
will allow it. He can allow the Standard Sanitary Co., where 
he comes from, whatever profit he sees fit. 

Mr. NEW. Mr. President 
Mr. McjKELLAR. I will yield in just a moment. 
Mr. CUMMINS. I am speaking now of the case of a contract 

either originally made or validated in the way provided for in 
either the Hitchcock amendment or the committee amendment. 

Mr. McKELLAR. I am speaking of that, too. 
Mr. CUMMINS. Does the Senator mean to say that in such 

a case there is any special provision in either of these amend
ments with regard to the measure of damages? 

Mr. McKELLAR. No; but liere is what we do. Without the 
restricting feature set out in section 6 of the amendment, these 
officers of the Army who make the settlements on valid con-
tracts already validated or those that we validate will be per
mitted to make any settlement they please, and the Government 
will be bound by it. If they allow prospective and possible 
profits and unliquidated damages, it will be absolutely good 
under this provision. 

Mr. CUMMINS. Would the Government then have the oppor
tunity to appeal to a commission or the Court of Claims? 

Mr. McKELLAR. They have a limited right of appeal in the 
Chamberlain bill. In the Hitchcock amendment, which is much 
better, the commission itself settles the matter. 

Mr. FLETCHER. Mr. President 
Mr. McKELLAR, I promised to yield to the Senator from 

Indiana [Mr. NEW]. 
Mr. FLETCHER. Just in connection with what the Senator 

from Iowa said 
Mr. McKELLAR. All right. 
Mr. FLETCHER. If the Senator will allow me to point it out,

the Senator from Iowa, I think, is correct in that the bills do not 
cover profits. Section 5 of the Hitchcock bill reads : 

Jurisdiction to hear the case and render final judgment in such sum 
as may be required to reimburse the contractor for expenses necessarily
incurred in good faith in the partial performance of the contract or
order above referred to. 

I do not think provision is made for profits in either of these 
measures. Therefore I can not see that there is any reason for 
negativing something that is not provided for elsewhere. 

Mr. McKELLAR. The Senator makes the same mistake that 
other Senators have made. This section does not apply to profits 
at all; it applies only to prospective and possible profits, and 
there is a very wide distinction between the two classes of 
Profits, as we all know. 

Mr. FLETCHER. In the authority given elsewhere in the 
J"11'. there is nothing anywhere requiring the commission or the 
secretary of War to allow profits. That is the point the Senator 
«oin Iowa makes. I also want to ask the Senator this question: 
n 1"eferrc(1 frequently in his remarks to the Hitchcock amend-
f™ \  H e n a  s reference to the bill proposed by the Senator 
Uoiu Nebraska [Mr. HITCHCOCK]? 

Mr. McKELLAR. I have. 
siih f 'v F L E T C H B R - T h e  b m t h a t  I s a b o u t  t o  b e offered as asubstitute? 

Mr. McKELLAR. Yes. 
to t)V fL E,T C H ER- May I ask the Senator, if he has reference 
offpi'lfi', w l!e t ner section G of that amendment covers what is 

Mr A - o t h e r b l I l ? 
O f»oiv' i«!C^E I ' t i A I i i  course it does, and what we are doing

"> trying to perfect the Chamberlain amendment. 
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Mr. FLETCHER. I ask the Senator if he proposes to substi

tute the Hitchcock amendment? 
Mr, McKELLAR. I wish to have that measure adopted. I 

am very much in favor of the Hitchcock amendment. I think it 
is a very much juster measure than this. I now yield to the 
Senator from Indiana. 

Mr. NEW. Mr. President, I wish to make an inquiry by stat
ing a case. I know, for instance, one concern, a woodworking 
concern, which was called upon in the early stages of this con-
tract making to depart from its own line of products and to 
take up an entirely new one for the department; that is, new, 
except that it was in the line of woodworking. They did not 
want to do it, because it involved a very radical change in their 
plant, the addition of a lot of machinery, and all that. They
carried on their negotiations with the department verbally;
there was not a stroke of the pen on any of it. They demurred 
against it, objected to it, but finally, at the insistence of the 
department, agreed that they would depart from their own line 
and go into this side line that the department wanted them to 
take on. 

They never did reach the point of making a written contract,
but they did this, Air. President: They estimated what it would 
cost them to put in the new plant and what it would cost 
them to dismantle that new plant when they got through with 
the Government job, because when they do get through with 
that the additional machinery that they put in in order to turn 
it out is of no value to them whatever. They have to take it 
out, every single stitch and particle of it, and their agreement 
with the Government as to the price they were ultimately to 
receive was fixed on the profit that they expected to make out of 
the Government contract. 

Now, only a part of their goods have been delivered. They
have a very large quantity of undelivered stuff in a partial stage 
of completion only left on their hands, and they owe something
like $600,000 in the banks which they have borrowed in order to 
complete that contract. That is four times as much as ordinarily
they would be able to borrow from the banks according to their 
capital and all. The banks can not go any further with them. 
They can not dismantle and go back to their own line. They are 
tied up without being able to settle this contract at all. They 
are at a standstill. Their employees are idle. In other words,
they are out of business. 

Now, I want to know if the Senator thinks under the amend
ment lie has just offered, if it prevails, it would be possible for 
the War Department to make an adjustment with them, allow
ing what they expected to get on the face of which they went 
Into the contract. 

Mr. McKELLAR. I will answer the Senator's question. If 
this amendment should prevail, that concern would get a return 
for all the money expended, a reasonable profit on what has been 
done. The Secretary of War or the commission would be in 
position to give that concern everything, including a real profit 
that the concern was justly entitled to. But if the concern,
with that verbal understanding stated, just as the Senator has 
stated, which seems to me to be quite vague, turns up and says,
' Now, we have spent $75,000 and we expected to make a million 

dollars out of it," it would not permit those possible or pros
pective profits of a million dollars on a $75,000 investment. 
This section would prevent that, but the section would provide 
that what was right and proper and reasonable should be paid 
the contractor. 

Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. Mr. President 
Mr. McKELLAR. Now, let me take just one moment to state 

a case that actually came up. I do not know whether the Sen
ator from New Jersey [Mr. FBELINGHUYSEN] was on the sub-
committee or not. I am talking from the record now. I am not 
talking of hearsay or possible hearsay. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER (Mr. BANKHEAD in the chair). 
Does the Senator from Tennessee yield to the Senator from New 
Jersey ? 

Mr. McKELLAR. In just one moment I will yield. One divi
sion of the Army here last September gave verbal orders for 
25,000 bathtubs for the Army. I believe in bathtubs and I be
lieve in taking baths, but it looks to me like 25,000 enamel-ware 
bathtubs for the Army was a pretty good order. This Mr. 
Ahrens, the president of the Standard Sanitary Co., in Pitts
burgh, who had his agents down here buying bathtubs from him 
for the Government, went to the Bathtub Manufacturers' Asso
ciation meeting and bragged about it. They were the people 
who did not get any contracts. Mr. McCubbin had cribbed all the 
contracts for the Standard Co., and they had not gotten these con-
tracts and they came down here and told us about it. Mr. 
McCubbin denied that he had given the contract for 25,000 
)athtubs. It appeared that there was no doubt about it. He 
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had just as good a contract as the one referred to by the Sen 
ator from Indiana [Mr. N E W ]  ; but when he found out the 
monstrous proposition there was in the purchase of 25,000 bath-
tubs, enamel ware, zinc, and closets, and everything of that 
sort, what happened? Where they are going to put them in the 
Army it is difficult to find. I do not know where so many could 
have been used. But here was a great company. It had bath-
tubs to sell; it had its agents buying them for the Government;
it had its agents selling them to the Government. Gentlemen 
that is the proof. Look in part 2 of the hearings and yon wilt 
find the proof of this very thing that I say. Now, had we not 
better put just a little hold on these boys who are settling up
with themselves? 

Mr. CUMMINS. Those contracts ought not to be validated 
lit all. 

Mr. McKELLAR. Certainly it ought not to be validated so 
ns to get what the president of this company may consider is a 
prospective or possible profit out of it. 

Mr. CALDER. Will the Senator yield to me? 
Mr. McKELLAR. I promised to yield to the Senator from 

New Jersey, and then I will yield to the Senator from New York 
Indeed, I am ready to yield the floor. 

Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. I will say to the Senator from New 
York that I shall take only a moment. The Senator, from Ten
nessee has clearly stated his definition of the amendment in 
regard to certain cases that have come under his observation 
which clearly are contracts that should never have been made. 
I have very little knowledge of contract law. The Senator,
who is a lawyer, knows a great deal more about it than I do. 
As I stated before* I am very anxious to avoid any injustice by
inserting in the act any phraseology which will repudiate any
honest contract made by the Government. 

Mr. McKELLAR. I have the same view the Senator has. 
Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. Now, I will put a concrete case, 

and I would very much like to have the Senator's opinion as to 
whether his amendment will not practically repudiate this 
agreement made by the Government. 

Mr. McKELLAR. I shall be glad to give the Senator any
information I can. 

Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. A by-product coke manufacturing 
concern was solicited by the War Department to add to its 
plant additional ovens in order to increase for the Government 
the supply of toluol and ammonia. 

Mr. McKELLAR. I am familiar with that class of contracts. 
Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. The business of the company in 

normal times did not need the additional equipment, and it was 
unwilling to expend the money required for this addition unless 
it was secured by a contract for the sale of these products,
which were merely by-products in its coke production. The 
War Department therefore made a contract with the concern 
whereby the concern obligated itself to build additional ovens 
and sell its entire output of toluol and ammonia to the Govern
ment for the period of two years. 

The contracts contained a provision authorizing the War 
Department to cancel the contract at any time, in which event 
it agreed to pay the producer for the balance of the term of the 
contract the difference between the contract price and the 
amount which the producer would realize on the market for 
such product. The manufacturers decided that if they had a 
sale of these products for two years at the contract price, which 
was the standard price paid by the Government, they could take 
the business risk of having a larger plant than they needed at 
the termination of the war. 

Now, that was a two years' contract. It is canceled, and your 
provision provides that no unearned profits shall be paid 

Mr. McKELLAR. The Senator is mistaken about that. That 
contract, if I caught it right, and I think I did, would be per
fectly plain. It provides what profits shall be made. They are 
fixed in the contract. Of course those profits will be allowed 
voider the settlement. Under section 6 there is no doubt in the 
world about that. Why? Because the parties, before the con-
tract was made, agreed upon what the profits should be, and 
they are not prospective or possible profits; they are excluded by
the terms of the contract from prospective or possible profit. 

Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. They are prospective profits. 
Mr. McKELLAR. Not at all. Prospective profits are not 

profits that the parties have agreed to beforehand and fixed 
themselves. Of course not. 

Mr. LENROOT. Does the Senator mean to say if there is a 
contract where they propose to pay a profit of 10 per cent on a 
billion dollars' worth of goods and only $1,000,000 worth is ac
cepted, yet that is liquidated damages? 

Mr. McKELLAR. No, no; I moan this: As I understood the 
reading of the contract by the Senator from New Jersey, it was 
that the profits which should accrue were fixed by the parties 

themselves in the making of the contract, and if it is liquidated 
damages it is not prospective or possible profits at all, and it 
comes directly within this provision. 

Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. I will take only a moment more. 
I have another case, and possibly the Senator from Tennessee 
can tell me whether it will come under section C. 

Air. McKELLAR. You know what they say about a lawyer 
who gives an offhand opinion; it is not very good. But I will be 
delighted to give such an opinion as I can. 

Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. I am very glad the Senator has 
made that reservation. Possibly when he reads the RECORD 
he will want to correct it a little. 

In a number of instances the Government has reqxiired the 
manufacturers of articles, which were covered by patent which 
were not owned by them, to make such articles. In such in-
stances there was not time to stop and have careful inquiry as 
to whether an infringement was involved, and the Government 
has inserted in its contract a clause agreeing to protect the 
manufacturer from any claims of the owner of the patent. 
Would your amendment affect in any way those agreements? 

Mr. McKELLAR. I will answer the Senator's question by
asking another. Was the acquirement of those patents neces
sarily incurred in order to carry out the contract? 

Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. I understand that this is the situa
tion as it occurred in many cases where is was necessary for 
the Government to procure war equipment. The questions of 
infringement of patent rights or royalty and other questions 
were simply postponed for future settlement, and in the emer
gency the Secretary of War assured the owners of the rights 
and the patents that a settlement would be hereafter made and 
adjusted. 

Mr. McKELLAR. The patents were necessary in order to 
carry out the contracts, were they not? 

Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. Absolutely. 
Mr. McKELLAR. Then it comes directly within the very 

terms of section 6. It is not left to doubt or to construction,
but it comes direcly within the terms of section 6. 

I now yield to the Senator from New York. 
Mr. CALDER. I wish to make an inquiry of the Senator. 
Mr. McKELLAR. I make the same reservation about curb-

stone opinions that I made to the Senator from New Jersey. 
Mr. CALDER. I am not a lawyer, as is the Senator from 

Tennessee, who is a distinguished lawyer, and there is every
indication that he has given much thought to this particular pro-
vision. I am disposed to agree with the Senator in many of the 
provisions of the so-called Hitchcock amendment, but the talk on 
both sides of the Chamber indicates that there is some doubt in 
the minds of some as to just what section 6 means. I agree sub
stantially with what the Senator says it means, and I wonder 
if he will be willing to insert this language in the section 

Mr. McKELLAR. There have been some insertions already
made, but let the Senator state it. 

Mr. CALDER. After the words " United States," in line 10,
insert " or ready for delivery or in process of manufacture." 

Mr. McKELLAR. I am inclined to think that that would be a 
proper amendment; I have no objection to it. If the Senator 
will offer it, I will accept it. 

Mr. CALDER. I offer that as an amendment. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. Does the Senator from Ten

nessee accept the amendment? 
Mr. McKELLAR. I accept the amendment. 
Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. May I make one suggestion to the Sen

ator from Tennessee? I think he misapprehends that section. 
The section does not protect the contractor against liability
which he incurred; absolutely not. In the case put by the Sen
ator from New Jersey, where the contractor is indemnified by
the Government for the use of patents that are held by other 
parties, every man who uses the patent violates the law, and 
the royalty may be recovered. Here is an institution going
ahead under the guaranty of the Government and using the 
patents of other individuals, or it may be hundreds of them, as 
far as that is concerned. All these individuals will have re-
course to that contractor, who has acted ill reliance upon his 
uaranty. There is nothing in section (5 to protect those men 

against those liabilities. 
Mr. McKELLAR. I can not possibly agree with the Senator,

because it provides in specific terms remuneration for expendi
tures necessarily incurred. If they have incurred these ex
penditures, even though they have done so in violation of patent 
rights, they come directly within the wording of the section just 
the same. I yield the floor now. 

Mr. LENROOT. I offer an amendment to strike out and 
nsert. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER (Mr. WOI.COTT in the chair). 
The Secretary will lead the amendment. 



1919. CONGRESSIONAL: RECOKD—SENATE. 2209

The SECRETABY. In lieu of the amendment offered by the 

Senator from Tennessee, as modified, insert the following: 
That In no case shall any award: either by the Secretary of War,

the commission, or the Court of Ctaims, include prospective or pos-
Bible profits on any part of the contract beyond the goods and sup-
plies delivered to and accepted by the United States, and a remunera
tion which may include a reasonable profit for expenditures and obli
gations or liabilities necessarily Incurred in performing or preparing to 
perform said contract or order so canceled. 

Mr. McKELLAR. I -will accept that amendment. 
Mr. LENROOT. Thank you. 
Mr. McKELLAR. I withdraw my amendment and accept 

this one. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Senator from Tennessee 

withdraws his amendment to the amendment and accepts the 
.one just offered by the Senator from Wisconsin. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. I should like to have it read again. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. It will be again read. 
The Secretary again read the amendment to the amendment. 
Mr. POMERENB. May I ask the Senator from Wisconsin a 

question? Is the language broad enough to include remunera
tion for profits upon goods which might be in whole or in part 
manufactured, but which had not been delivered? 

Mr. LENROOT. The language is "in performing or pre^ 
paring to perform," which clearly would include that. 

Mr. POMERENE. I so understand it, but I wanted to be 
certain about it. 

Mr. FLETCHER. It is not clear to me as to the last clause 
of the proposed amendment. As I caught it, it says the remu
neration shall include a reasonable profit. 

Mr. LENROOT. Which may include. 
Mr. FLETCHER. Which may include a reasonable profit for 

expenditures. 
Mr. LENROOT. Or obligations or liabilities. 
Mr. FLETCHER. A " reasonable profit" is one thing and 

" expenditures necessarily incurred " quite another thing. You 
do not mean a profit on expenditures? 

Mr. LENROOT. I think the Senator is correct, and that 
should be changed. 

Mr. FLETCHER. "Reasonable profits and expenditures." 
Mr. LENROOT. No; the language is that the award may

permit a remuneration which may include a reasonable profit 
for. expenditures arid obligations, and so forth. I think that is 
correct. 

Mr. FLETCHER. Reasonable profits on the performance of 
the contract is one thing, but remuneration for expenditures, it 
seems to me, is a different thing. I should think what the Sena
tor perhaps has in mind is to provide for a reasonable profit,
and, in addition to that, remuneration.for expenditures neces
sarily incurred. 

Mr. LENROOT. I am permitting that. That is what I in-
tend to do. 

Mr. FLETCHER. I think the word " and" should be in
serted. 

Mr. McKELLAR. I think the Senator has it exactly right. 
The difference between the amendment he has offered and the 
one offered by me is that his specifically provides for reasonable 
profits on what the contractor has done. The amendment offered 
by me provides for precisely the same thing. Both amendments 
exclude possible or prospective profits. That is my understand
ing of it, and I think it is entirely satisfactory to the Senate. 

Mr. FLETCHER. It seems to me it would be perfectly absurd 
to provide for reasonable profits and to have a profit for ex
penditures necessarily incurred in preparing for the contract. 

Mr. LENROOT. No; it is remuneration for expenditures,
which remuneration may include a reasonable profit. 

Mr. FLETCHER. I would not object to that, but a " reason-
able profit for expenditures " is a thing that I can not compre
hend. 

Mr. LENROOT. No; the Senator does not read it correctly. 
It is" remuneration for expenditures—that is the grammatical 
construction—which may include a reasonable profit. 

Mr. FLETCHER. I can understand that; but what I can 
not quite comprehend is the expression " remuneration * * * 
for expenditures *• • * necessarily incurred" or remunera
tion for profits on expenditures. 

Mr. HITCHCOCK. I should like to ask the Senator from 
Wisconsin to explain how the term " remuneration" can in
clude a profit. Remuneration means to make good to a man 
what he has expended. It is therefore less than profit. How 
can the lesser include tlie greater? 

Mr. LENROOT. I do not understand that remuneration for 
expenditures necessarily is limited to the actual amount of the 
expenditures. Remuneration and compensation, I think, are 
synonymous terms in this, that compensation for expenditures 
might, include the actual amount of expenditures and something
added to it for profit. • • • 

Mr. FLETCHER. I agree with the Senator, but I think the 
language is a little unfortunate in that it seems to provide for 
remuneration for profits on expenditures,

Mr. LENROOT. Let me read it as it stands, and then if the 
Senator thinks so I shall be glad to accept an amendment to it 
to make it clear: 

And a remuneration, which may include a reasonable profit, lor ex
penditures. 

That is, remuneration for expenditures, which remuneration 
may include a reasonable profit. 

Mr. FLETCHER. It might depend upon the punctuation. Do 
you put a comma after "remuneration"? 

Mr. LENROOT. I have a comma after " remuneration " and 
one after "prrfit." 

Mr. McKELLAR. That will cover it.. 
Mr. CHAMBERLAIN.. I will accept that amendment. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Senator from Oregon ac

cepts the amendment to the amendment on behalf of the com
mittee. 

Mr. POMERENE. I offer to the substitute the following, 
to be added to section 4—— 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. The amendment to the amendment 
has not beeu voted on by the Senate. 

Mr. McKELLAR. It has not been voted on. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Chair begs pardon. The 

question is on the adoption, of the amendment offered by the 
Senator from Wisconsin to the amendment of the committee. 

Mr. LENROOT. My amendment was. not a substitute, be-
cause it left the proviso in. which had theretofore been accepted 
by the Senator; so that the amepdment as adopted includes the 
proviso. I merely desire to understand whether that is cor-

The PRESIDING,OFFICER. Let the Chair state the ques
tion properly. The question is on the adoption of the amend
ment offered by the Senator from Tennessee to the amendment. 

The amendment was agreed to. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Senator from Ohio [Mi\ 

POMEEENE] has-presented an amendment, which will be stated. 
Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. Pardon me, Mr. President, but I nm 

not entirely satisfied with what the RECOBD will show in refer
ence to this matter. There seems to be a little pride of opinion 
in relation to this amendment. The amendment which the Sen
ator from Tennessee proposed was not accepted at all. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. But the Chair calls the atten
tion of the Senator from Oregon to the fact that the Senator 
from Tennessee offered an amendment; then the Senator from 
Wisconsin offered an amendment to it, and the Senator. from 
Tennessee said that he accepted that amendment. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. That is all right. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. So that the amendment be-

comes the amendment of the Senator from Tennessee, which 
was adopted. The Senator from Ohio [Mr. POMEUKNIE] has 
offered an amendment, which will be stated. 

The SECBETABY. At the end of section 4, on page 12, it i3 
proposed to insert the following: 

In all proceedings bereunder witnesses may be compelled to attend, 
appear, and testify, and produce books, papers, and letters or other docu
ments, and the claim that any such testimony or evidence may tend to 
criminate the person giving the same shall not excuse such witness from 
testifying, but such evidence or testimony shall not be used against such 
person on the trial of any criminal proceeding. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. I have no objection to that amend
ment. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The question is on the adoption 
of the amendment offered by the Senator from Ohio. 

Mr. HITCHCOCK. I should like to ask whether the Senator 
is offering that amendment to the committee substitute or to 
my substitute? 

Mr. POMERENE. I am offering it to the committee sub
stitute. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The question is on the adop
tion of the amendment offered by the Senator from Ohio. 

The amendment was agreed to. 
Mr. POMERENE. I offer the amendment which I send to the 

desk, to be designated as section 5. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Senator from Ohio offers 

an amendment, which will be stated. 
The SECBETABY. It is proposed to add as a new section the 

following: 
SEC. O. Whenever, under the provisions of this act, the Secretary of 

War shall make an award to any prime contractor who shall have sublet 
any part of said contract for material, equipment, or supplies to any
other person, firm, or corporation who has in good faith made expendi
tures, incurred obligations, rendered service, or furnished material,
equipment, or supplies to any prime contractor, with the knowledge and 
approval of any agent of the Secretary of War duly authorized there-
unto, the Secretary of War shall apportion the amount of said award 
Justly due to each of the subcontractors of said prime contractors. 
Before payment of said award the Secretary of War shall require any 
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nriitiP contractor to present satisfactory evidence of having paid said 
Kiiljcoiitractors or of the consent of said subcontractors to look/or their 
i-omppusation to said prime contractor only; and in the case of the 
fViU'iv of said prime contractor to present such evidence or such con-
sent' the Secretary of War shall pay directly to said subcontractors the 
amount found to be due under said award; and in case of the insolvency 
of 'HiV prime contractor the subcontractor of said prime contractor shall 
h'iv« a lien l l U 0  U the funds arising from said award prior and superior 
to the lien of any general creditors of said prime contractor. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The question is on the adop
tion of the amendment offered by the Senator from Ohio. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. Mr. President, I am not going to op
pose the amendment, but I believe that under the terms of the 
hill reported by the committee the amendment of the Senator is 
covered. I shall not, however, make any objection to it. 

Mr. POMERENE. Mr. President, I have had serious doubts 
of that. I may say that this matter has been studied by some 
constituents of mine who are especially interested in it, and I 
am disposed to take their view of it. I do not believe that the 
interests of subcontractors are protected by this proposed legis
lation as they ought to be. I have not any private opinion about 
this matter, and I shall be very glad, if the amendment shall be 
adopted, to let the conferees work it out as they think it ought 
to be. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. I have no objection to that, Mr. Presi
de at. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The question is on the adoption 
of the amendment of the Senator from Ohio. 

The amendment was agreed to. 
Mr. FLETCHER. Mr. President, I desire to move to strike 

out the proviso, beginning in line 14, page 5, to the end of the 
paragraph, including line 17, and to insert instead of it another 
proviso, which I will ask the Secretary to read. 

I think the present proviso in the bill as submitted makes it 
a rather one-sided sort of proposition, and I think that which I 
propose would clear up the whole matter. I believe it will be 
agreeable to the chairman of the committee and other members 
of the committee if they will listen to it. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The amendment proposed by
the .Senator from Florida will be stated. 

The SECBETARY. On page 5, line 14, after the word "Provided,"
it is proposed to strike out the remainder of the paragraph and 
to insert the following; 

That payment of expense incurred or loss and damage suffered in pre-
paring for or in the performance of such informal agreements or of 
formal contracts shall not exceed the fair value of labor performed or 
services rendered or the actual cost of the materials used, as determined 
I)}1 the Secretary of War. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The question is on the adoption 
of the amendment offered by the Senator from Florida. 

Mr. McKELLAR. I do not agree to that amendment. That 
means, Mr. President, that whatever agency in the entire coun
try, or even abroad, which happens to be representing the War 
Department, can fix any compensation they desire.  It would 
not he fair to the Government; it would be very unwise and un
just. The committee has provided a plan here which does equal 
and exact justice. I think, if we adopt the amendment offered 
by the Senator from Florida, we might just as well simply turn 
this matter over and say to the Secretary of War, "You may
employ any agency you choose and settle it in any way you can." 
That is really the meaning and effect of the anicndineut offered 
by the Senator from Florida. It gives the Secretary carte 
Blanche to settle these contracts in any way he wishes, and I 
hope the Senator will not insist upon the amendment. 

Mr. FLETCHER. It does not change the provision of the 
bill at all as to the powers of the Secretary of War or of the 
commission or any/hi tig else. 

Sir. McKELLAR. Let the amendment be again read. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Secretary will again state 

tlie^amendment offered by the Senator from Florida. 
The Secretary again read the amendment. 
Mr. McKELLAR". Tlie words " as determined by the Secre

tary of War" are absolutely the important language in the pro-
posed proviso. 

Mr. FLETCHER. I am willing to strike out those words if 
that, is the objection to the amendment. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Does the Senator from Florida 
propose to strike out any portion of his amendment? 

Mr. McKELLAR. As I understand, the Senator from Florida 
is willing to strike out the clause which he has indicated. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Will the Senator from Florida 
Please state what portion of the amendment he desires to strike 
out: in order that the Secretary may understand it? 

Mr. FLETCHER. I propose to strike out the words "as de
termined by the Secretary of War," and to let the amendment 
end with the word " used." 

Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. Mr. President, T simply wish to say 
to the Senate that this amendment practically nullities the 

amendment which we have just adopted, as offered by the Sena
tor from Wisconsin [Mr. LENKOOT]. SO I hope the Senators are 
aware of the effect of ihe amendment. 

Mr. CUMMINS. Mr. President, the amendment not only nulli
fies or neutralizes the amendment offered by the Senator from 
Wisconsin, but it is inconsistent with the spirit of the provision 
as reported by the committee, and is so repugnant to the whole 
idea that is sought to be expressed that it ought not to bo ap
proved at all. 

Senators will observe that the provision of the committee 
amendment is that there shall be awarded such relief " as will 
under all the circumstances fairly and equitably compensate 
him or it for the expenditures made, obligations incurred, equip
ment, materials, or supplies furnished or acquired, or services 
rendered, as aforesaid." That is the rule laid down by the com
mittee for the ascertainment of losses. Then the committee 
qualifies that rule by the proviso: 

Provided, That In no event shall such contract provide for com
pensation on terms more favorable than the terms, if any, for which the 
aforesaid agreement, order, or request may have provided. 

That is understandable; it is a real limitation or qualifica
tion upon the rule laid down by the committee; but, if this 
amendment is adopted, we shall find ourselves in the rather un
fortunate attitude of having laid down one rule and immedi
ately afterwards having prescribed another—a most unsatis
factory ending, I sfiould think, for a very happy expression of 
the rule as the committee has reported it. 

Mi-. CHAMBERLAIN. Mr. President, I am in accord with 
the views expressed by the Senator from Iowa [Mr. CUMMINS], 
and I hope the amendment will not be adopted. It is a great 
pleasure to me at this time to have, for once, the Senator from 
Tennessee in accord with me. It proves that he is sometimes 
right. 

Mr. McKELLAR. Mr. President, I am very frequently in 
accord with the distinguished Senator from Oregon, whom 1 love 
very dearly, and when I am not in accord with him I regret 
exceedingly that he is wrong. 

Mr. FLETCHER. That would simply indicate that if both 
of those Senators are in accord I must be wrong, and I ask to 
withdraw the amendment. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The amendment is withdrawn. 
Mr. HENDERSON. I have an amendment on the desk to the 

bill, to be known now as section G, I believe. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Senator from Nevada 

offers an amendment, which will be stated. 
Mr. LENROOT. I have an amendment to offer. 
Mr. HENDERSON. I will yield to the Senator from Wis

consin, as I understand he has a new paragraph to offer. 
Mr. McKELLAR. The amendment of the Senator from Wis

consin applies to the text itself. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Senator from Wisconsin 

offers an amendment, which will be stated. 
The SECRETARY. On page 4, lines C and 7, it is proposed to 

strike out the words " or aid in procuring the same." 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The question is on the adoptioa 

of the amendment. 
Mr. LENROOT. Mr. President, in order that the Senate may

Understand the purpose of this amendment, I will say that 
unless the amendment is adopted the bill is going to open the 
door to a veritable flood of claims not contemplated at this time 
at all. Under the language reported by the committee, if any,
department of the Government, if any dollar-a-year man on the 
War Industries Board, has made a request that somebody should 
do something with reference to the preparation of a contract 
or to do anything to aid the Government in securing munitions,
although there is not a semblance of authority to make a con-
tract, nevertheless the Government under the language of the 
bill is bound. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. May I interrupt the Senator? 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. Does the Senator from Wis

consin yield to the Senator from Oregon? 
Mr. LENROOT. Yes. 
Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. The committee thought that the idea 

which the Senator now has in mind was fully provided for in 
lines 4, 5, and 0, where the bill reads : 

Has made an agreement with the Secretary of War. or with any officer 
agent acting under his authority, or with any agency of the Govern

ment authorized to procure or aid in procuring— 
Mr. LENROOT. " Or aid in procuring." 
Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. Yes. It is only those contracts which 

are authorized to be made that are covered. We thought that 
was adequate protection. 

Mr. LENROOT. It must be remembered, however, that all 
of these contracts were authorized to aid in the procuring of 
supplies. It is not so important, so far as the first paragraph is 
concerned, but the Senator will recall that with reference to the 
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subsequent paragraphs of the bill, where the claim Is founded 
upon a mere request, it may be founded upon the kind of an 
agency I have suggested. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. I hare noobjection to theamendment. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. Thequestion is on agreeing to 

the amendment offered by the Senator from Wisconsin. 
Mr. FLETCHER. Let theamendment be again stated. 
The PRESIDING} OFFICER. TheSecretary will again state 

the amendment. 
The SECEETAEY. On page 4, line 6, after theword "procure," 

it is proposed to strike out " or aid in procuring the same," so 
as to read: 

Or with any agency of theGovernment authorized to procure lor the
War Department. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Thequestion is on agreeing to 
the amendment offered by theSenator from Wisconsin. 

The amendment was agreed to. 
Mr. LENROOT. I offer another amendment. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. Theamendment ottered by the 

Senator from Wisconsin will be stated. 
The SECRETABY. Onpage S, line 17, after theword "require

ments," it is proposed to insert " or compliance has been waived 
as herein provided." 

Mr. LENROOT. That is to cover the objection made by the 
Senator from Iowa [Mr. Ctrsiitrss] on yesterday. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. I have no objection to that amend
ment, Mr.President. 

Mr. LENROOT. I will merely state the purpose of it. The 
bill as it now stands does not provide for an appeal to thecom
mission in the case of contracts where compliance lias been 
waived. This will permit such an appeal. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Thequestion is onagreeing to 
the amendment offered bythe Senator from Wisconsin. 

The amendment was agreed to. 
Mr. LENROOT. I offer another amendment. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The amendment will be stated. 
The SECRETABY. On page 8,line 12, it is proposed tostrike out 

the words " any dispute arises " and to insert " the Secretary of 
.War andthe contractor shall fail to agree." 

MT. LENROOT. Mr. President, tae contention has been 
made that the language of the bill would permit an appeal be-
fore the contractor and the Secretary of Wai- ihad come to a 
disagreement I doubt very much whether that is a proper 
construction; but I talse it there will be no objection to making
It clear that theappeal canonly be hadafter a failure to agree. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The question is on agreeing to 
the amendment offered by the Senator from Wisconsin. 

The amendment wasagreed to. 
Mr. LENROOT. Mr.President, I have one more amendment 

to offer. I send it to thedesk. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. Theamendment offered by the 

Senator from Wisconsin will be stated. 
The SECBETAET. On page 4, at the end of line 20, it is pro-

posed to insert the following: 
Anil provides ./urtfter, That Eiicii waiver shall not validate such con-

tract or procurement order in so far as any claim for unearned profits 
may bo involved. 

Mr. LENROOT. Mr. President, this is the matter «hat Tvas; 

'discussed yesterday as to making valid a contract that had not 
been valldly executed, andUiero wassome little discussion here 
as to whether the validation of such a contract would -not give 
the contractor a valid, legal claim to all unearned profits. I 
offer this amendment, which is in harmony with 'the one which 
lias already been adopted by theSenate. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Thequestion is on the amend
ment offered by the Senator from Wisconsin. 

The amendment wasagreed to. 
Mr. CUMMINS. Mr. President, I offer the amendment which 

I send to the desk. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. Theamendment offered by the 

Senator from Iowa will be stated. 
Tin; SECBETABY. Onpage 5, line 3, after the word " form," it 

•is proposed to insert the words "or when the Secretary of War 
JMIS not waived such noncompliance." 

Mr. CUMMINS. Mr. President, the amendment is intended 
to give the Secretary of War,and afterwards the commission,
the- opportunity to do justice in those cases in which acom
.pliiiuco has been waived. 

Mr. McKELLAK. On what page andline, may I aslt theSen
ator, does the amendment come in? My attention was tem
porarily diverted. • ; 

•Mr. CUMMINS. On page 5, line 3, after the word "form." 
It is akin to an amendment offered by the Senator from Wis
consin [Mr. LEKBOOT] andis necessary to complete it. In other 

words, It brings into paragraph 2 thecases in which compliance 
with Strict statutory forms hasbeen waived by tho Secretary. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. Sofar as I am concerned, I amwill
ing to accept the amendment, Mr. President. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Thequestion is on thp amend
ment offered by the Senator from Iowa. 

The amendment was agreed to. 
Mr. McKELLAR. Mr. President 
Mr. CUMMINS. Will the Senator allow me just another 

suggestion, and then I will not interfere again, I hope. I have 
another amendment, but unfortunately have mislaid it forthe 
moment andcannot put myhands upon it, but I should like to 
ask theSenator in charge of the bill, aswell asthe Senator from 
Tennessee, who is interested in another form of bill, a question. 
Suppose the Secretary of War, under theBrst paragraph ofthe 
committee amendment, declines to waive the failure to comply
with the statutory requirements or form and the contract is 
therefore invalid, strictly considered. I want to provide juris
diction on the part of the commission to review the action of the 
Secretary of War In that respect exactly as it is provided that 
the commission mayreview the action of the Secretary of War 
in every other respect which affects the rights of thecontractors. 
Would theSenator from Oregon and theSenator from Tennessee 
have objection to such a provision? ' 

Mr. McKELLAR. I have noobjection to it. I tMnk a better 
plan, however, would be for the Senator to vote for the Hitch-
cock amendment, which will put It beyond question; but, of 
'.course, that is a matter for him to determine. I liave no objec
tion to the amendment. 

Mr. LENROOT. Mr. President,- if theSenator will yield, may
I askwhythere should beanysuch provision now that the bill 
has been amended giving thecontractors thebenefit of theother 
provisions of the bill which do absolutely guarantee them a rea
sonable compensation? 

Mr. CUMMINS. Mr.President, there is a difference between 
the remedy given under thesecond paragraph of the bill and the 
remedy that might be given under the Brst paragraph; and it 
seems to me that, if thecommission is to stand in review ofthe 
act of theSecretary of War, it ought to have the power to i-eview 
his act in refusing to validate a contract. 

Mr. McKELLAR. I think clearly, under the Chamberlain 
bill, that if the Secretary of War should refuse, then the con-
tractor could appeal to the commission. If that is not thecon
struction to be placed apon the bill, I will be very glad to vote 
for an amendment which will effectuate that object, becausethe 
contractors ought to have that right. 

Mr. CUMMINS. I do notthink there could ;be an appeal prose
cuted upon that ground.: Mr. McKELLAE. If the Senator will offer such an amend
ment, sofar as I.maconcerned, I will be glad to have it made a 
part of thebill. 

Mr. CUMMINS, I nowhave the amendment which I had in 
mind and will send it tothe desk and askto have it read. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. ThoSenator from Iowa offers 
an amendment, which the Secretary will state. 

The SECBETAJRT. On line 21, onpage 7, it is proposed to strike 
out theword "Thereupon," and insert the following: 

If the Secretary of War shall refuse to -waive noncoinpliancc with 
statutory requirements in respect to any agreement 'within the purview 
of the first paragraph of section 1 of this act, or upon the-expiration •&¥
CO days from the date of the taking effect of this act «hall have failed 
to waive such uonconipllance, the contractor named in any such agree
ment may, within 80 days after such refusal or after the expiration of 
such 60 days, .file with the chairman of said commission a notice of 
appeal In all cases where an appeal is taken hereunder. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The question is on agreeing 
to the amendment offered by the Senator from Iowa. 

Mr. LENROOT. Mr. President, before the amendment is 
acted on, I should like to ask the Senator from Iowa a ques
tion. I should like to ask him if he (has considered how that 
amendment affects the language of the remainder of the sec
tion? DoI understand that it is to be inserted before the wort! 
" Thereupon "? 

Mr. CUMMINS. It is inserted in lieu of the word "There-
upon." 

Mr LENROOT. I ask to have tho amendment again stated. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. TheSecretary will again Slate 

the amendment. 
The amendment was again stated. 
Mr. JLENROOT. That is all right. 
Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. I think the amendment is al! right,

Mr. President. It takes away from the Secretary of War tho 
•arbitrary power to refuse a waiver. 

The PRESIDING OFFICE!:. Thequestion is on agreeing to 
the amendment offered by the Seuntor from Iowa. 

The amendment was agreed to. 
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Mr. McKELLAR. Mr. President. I think all sides to this 
contract controversy Lave ignored the House bill, which was 
sent over here to us to be considered. A careful perusal of that 
bill shows that it contains some very good provisions, and one 
especially that ought to go hi this bill. I am going to offer 
an amendment, which I will read, because, in the form in which 
it is found, I believe I can read Jt better. After the word 
"thereof," in Hue 12, on page 12, I move to insert the follow
ing: 

And provided further, That no settlement of any claim arising under 
any such agreement shall bur the United States Government through 
any of its duly authorized ngencies, or any committee of Congress here-
after duly appointed, from the right of review of such settlement, nor 
the right of recovery of nny money paid by the Government to any
party under any settlement entered into, or payment made under the 
provisions of this act, if the Government has been defrauded, and the 
jiglit of recovery in nil such cases shall extend to the executors, ad
ministrators, beirs, and assigns, or any party or parties. 

Mi-. President, of course, that applies only to a settlement 
which is made in fraud of the Government, and I take it that 
there will be no objection to that amendment. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. Where does the Senator take it from 
the House bill? 

Mr. McKELLAR. If the Senator will look at the bottom of 
page 2 and the top of page 3, he will see the words " That no " 
right at the bottom. I desire to have it come in as a new sec
tion immediately after the Pomerene amendment that was 
adopted. I had forgotten that the Senator from Ohio offered 
an amendment which was adopted a while ago. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. This is to be inserted after 
the last word of that paragraph as it is amended now? 

Mr. McKELLAR. Yes. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The question is on the adop

tion of the amendment offered by the Senator from Tennessee. 
Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. Mr. President, just one moment. I 

believe that it would iiuprove the amendment if the Senator 
would amend it just a little, by striking out the words "any 
such agreement" and inserting in lieu thereof the words " any 
contract covered by the terms of this bill." 

Mr. McKELLAR. The amendment goes a little further than 
that, I believe. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. The amendment that the Senator lias 
proposed reads as follows 

Mr. McKELLAR. It. is identically the House provision on 
that subject. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. Yes. [Reading:] 
That no settlement of any claim arising under any such agree

ment— 
What agreement? I want it to read "any contract provided 

for in this bill." 
Mr. McKELLAR. I will accept that amendment. 
Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. Strike out the words "such agree

ment." 
Mr. McKELLAR. I will accept that amendment; and I 

desire to ask unanimous consent that I may add the second 
proviso as well: 

And prodded further, That nothing in this act shall be construed to 
relieve any officer or agent of the United States from criminal prose
cution under the provisions of any statutes of the United States for 
any fraud or criminal conduct. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Senator incorporates that 
in his amendment? 

Mr. McKELLAR. Yes. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. Xow the Senator from Oregon 

will please state his amendment. 
Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. I want it to read in this way: 
Xo settlement of any claim arising under the provisions of this bill 

elmll liar (he United .States—-
And so forth. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. Does the Senator from Ten

nessee accept that amendment? 
Mr. McKELLAR. I accept it. 
Mr. HITCHCOCK. I should like to know where it goes in. 
Mr. McKELLAR. Immediately after the Pomerene amend

ment. Oh. the Senator means the Chamberlain amendment? 
Mr. HITCHCOCK. Yes. 
Mr. McKELLAR. That goes in at the top of page 3, in lieu 

of the words " such agreement." He inserts there " the con-
tracts provided for in this acr," which I think is very proper, 
on page 3 of the Chamberlain bill. It goes in as a new section. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The amendment to the amend
ment will be stated. 

The SKCRKTARY. Following the amendment heretofore agreed 
to. offered by the Senator from Ohio [Mr. POMEBENE], it is pro-
posed to insert the following as a new section: 

That no settlement of any claim arising under the provisions of this 
bill shiill bar the United States 

Mr. McKELLAR. It ought to be " this act." 
The SKCRETARY (reading) — 
That no settlement of any claim arising under the provisions of this 

act shall bar the United States Government, through any of its duly
authorized agencies, or any committee of Congress hereafter duly ap
pointed, from the right of review of such settlement, nor the right of 
recovery of any money paid by the Government to nny party under 
any settlement entered into, or payment made under the provisions of 
this act. if the Government has been defrauded, and the right of re
covery in all such cases shall extend to the executors, administrators,
heirs, and assigns, or any party or parties: And provided further. 
That nothing in thiB act shall be construed to relieve any officer or 
agent of the United States from criminal prosecution under the pro-
visions of any statutes of the United States for any fraud or criminal 
conduct. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. May I ask the Senator whether this 
portion of his proposed amendment will not delay the payment 
by the Government to these contractors and others? 

Mr. McKELLAR. Why no. Why should it? 
Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. I am going to ask the Senator now 

and call his attention to the language. Take the language of 
the House bill, if you please—" from the right of review of 
such settlement." Suppose a claim has been adjusted and 
liquidated under the provisions of this bill; will it not still be 
open to a review before the payment has been made? 

Mr. McKELLAR. Oh, no; this applies only in cases of 
fraud. By the way, the third proviso should be added to this. 
I am going to ask unanimous consent in a moment that it shall 
be added. This section applies only to cases of fraud. Where 
a settlement tinder a contract has been procured by fraud the 
Government is not precluded by such settlement if it is fraudu
lently made. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. There may be some doubt about the 
language. 

Mr. McKELLAR. It is only about fraud; and, if there is 
any doubt, the Senator can fix it in conference. 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. We can probably adjust it in confer
ence if there is that doubt. 

Mr. McKELLAR. Yes. 
Mr. President, I ask unanimous consent to insert also the 

third proviso: 
And provided further. That this act shall in no way relieve or ex

cuse any officer or his agent from such criminal prosecution because ot 
any irregularity or illegality in the manner of the execution of such 
agreement. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Senator does not need 
unanimous consent for that. The amendment has not yet been 
adopted. It is the Senator's amendment. 

Mr. McKELLAR. I move, then, that that be added to the 
amendment. I perfect the amendment by adding that. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The question is on the amend
ment offered by the Senator from Tennessee, as modified, to the 
amendment of the committee. 

The amendment, as modified, to the amendment of the com
mittee was agreed to. 

Mr. FRELINGHDYSEN. Mr. President, I offer the amend
ment which I send to the desk. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Senator from New Jersey
offers an amendment to the amendment which will be stated. 

The SECRETARY. On page 7, line 23, after the word " thereon," 
it is proposed to insert the words " according to the justice and 
equity thereof," so that if amended it will read: 

And make its award or finding thereon according to the justice and 
equity thereof. 

The amendment to the amendment was agreed to. 
Mr. HENDERSON. Mr. President, I offer as a new section 

the amendment which I send to the desk. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Senator from Nevada 

offers an amendment, which will be stated. 
The SECRETARY. It is proposed to add, as a new section, the 

following : 
SKC. 7. That the Secretary of the Interior be, and hereby is, author

ized and directed to ascertain and determine the amount or amounts 
of money heretofore invested or contracted to be invested and obliga
tions Incurred by any and all persons and investors for producing or for 

metals, minerals, or mineral substances mentioned and enumerated in 
an act of Congress approved October 5, 1918 (public, No. 220), entitled 
"An act to provide further for the national security and defense by
encouraging the production, conserving the supply, and controlling the 
distribution of those ores, metals, and minerals which have formerly
been largely imported, or of which there is or may be nn inadequate 
supply; the production of which was requested or demanded by tho 
War Industries Board, the Shipping Board, the Department of the In
terior, or other agency of the Government. 

And that said Secretary ascertain, determine, adjust, liquidate, and 
out of the moneys provided and appropriated by said act pay to the 
parties entitled thereto the amount of such losses and damages as he,
the said Secretary, shall find and determine have been sustained ana 
suffered or are likely to be sustained am! suffered by reason of having
made such investments for said purposes or having produced surplus 
stocks of such materials; and that in each case he shall make such 
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determination, provision, settlement, advancement, or final payment, 
and hy agref'mcuL with owners ami claimants make sui-h othei: adjust
ment or take .such other action as he sball itnd and determine to bo
3ust. equitable, reasonable, and expedient: nnd that he make such pro-
visions as lie may deem necessary, advisable, and reasonable to prevent
furtlii-r losses pending final decision, settlement, and di*viositiou in 
any case or cases; that the payments herein authorized be made to the
claimant or claimants the said Secretary shall find to be morally,
equitably, and justly entitled thereto : that iu ascertaining and rtcter
miniuK the losses and damages sustained or to be sustained, and the
adjustments, settlements, payments, and provisions lo be made the
said Secretary shall consider "the prices and conditions existing at the
time of each investment nnd the prices and conditions existing prior to
the war, as well as those existing at the time of such determination,
adjustment, and settlement, together with all of the -circumstances and
conditions of each case; that the final determination, decision, provision,
disposition, and action of said Secretary in each case shall be conclusive 
and final; that oil payments shall be made and all expenses incurred
by the Secretary paid from the funds and appropriations provided and
appropriated by said act of October 5, 1918 (public, No. 220), and that
said funds and appropriations shall continue to be available for said 
purposes until such limo as the said Secretary shall have fully exer
cised the authority hereby granted and performed and completed the
duties hereby provided and imposed: Provided, however. That said
Secretary shall consider, approve, and dispose of only such claims as
shall be made hcreunder and filed with the Department of the Interior
within three months from and after the approval of this act. 

That a report of all operations under this section, including receipts 
nnd disbursements, shall bo made to Congress on or before the first
Monday in December of each year. ~ 

That nothing in this section shall bo construed to confer jurisdiction 
upon any court to entertain a suit against the United States. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The question is on the adoption 
of the amendment offered by the Senator from Nevada to the 
amendment of the committee. 

Mr. SMOOT. Mr. President, I notice that this amendment 
authorizes the Secretary of the Interior— 

To ascertain and determine the amount or amounts of money hereto-
fore invested or contracted to bo invested and obligations incurred by 
any ntK7 all persons and investors for producing or for the purpose of
producing or preparing for producing or acquiring property for produc
ing, within the United States, to snpply the urgent, published, and
evident needs of the Nation— 

Ami so forth. I want to call the attention of the Senator from

Nevada to the words " or acquiring properly for producing." It

seems to me that is going too far. I think that where a man has

purchased a piece of property for producing these metals we

•should not authorize the Secretary of the Treasury to go into the

quest ion as to what he paid and whether ho lost upon the pur

chase price of that property because of the fact that the war

closod sooner than he anticipated. I believe that is going alto

gether too far. I will ask the Senator if It would not be very

much better to strike out the words "or acquiring property for

producing"?


Mr. HENDERSON. I will consent to that, Mr. President.

Mr. SMOOT. I offer that amendment to the amendment, on


linos C and 7, of page 1, of the amendment.

Mr. CURTIS. Mr. President, could not this amendment be


printed and go over until to-morrow? Some of us have not had

a chance to read it. It is a very long and very important amend

ment.


The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Chair will state that the

amendment has already been printed.


Mr. CURTIS. Some of us have had no opportunity to read it;

and, as I understood, the Senator this afternoon offered some

additional amendments to the one that lie offered yesterday. We

have Lad no chance nt nil to read his perfected amendment

offered this aiternoon.


Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. Mr. President

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Does the Senator from Knnsns


yield to the Senator from Oregon?

Mr. CURTIS. Certainly.

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. I have tried to impress on the Mem


bers of the Senate the very great importance of the enactment of

this measure, or some measure, for the relief of those that have

been dealing innocently and patriotically with the Government

pf the United States.


Mr. CURTIS. Mr. President, I want to state to the Senator

that I have no desire to delay action on the bill reported by Mm.

I think there should be fcarly action upon it; but I do object to 
passing upon an amendment offered here in the afternoon 
.which none of us have had a chance to read, and which, it 
seems to me, goes very, very far indeed, and is liable to con
stitute a very bad precedent on the part of the Senate. 

Mr. HENDERSON. If the Senator will yield just a moment,
I wish to state that this amendment was proposed by lwe and 
printed on January 20 and is on the desks of all of the Sen
ators. • . • 

Mr. CURTIS. But the Senator offered amendments to if this 
afternoon. • • . 

Mr. HENDERSON. No; it is absolutely In the form in which 
it wns presented, with the exception of striking out two words. 

Mr. Cl'ltTIS. The Senator, stood upon the floor this after-
noon and announced that he wanted to perfect his amendment. 

Mr. HENDERSON. Yes. That was in order to introduce 
the same amendment that was printed on the 20th of November 
to the Chamberlain bill and the Hitchcock bill, so as to perfect 
them, to be sure that it would be considered under whichever 
bill passed the Senate. However, I have no objection to the 
amendment going over, so as to explain it to-morrow. 

Mr. CURTIS. Some of us have been very busy witlt com
mittee meetings; and, as far as I am concerned, I have not had 
time to read the amendment offered by the Senator. 

Mr. HENDERSON. I have no objection to the amendment 
going over until to-morrow. 

Mr. CURTIS. If the members of the committee liavo read 
the amendment and are able to state to us what it contains, 
and what its effect will be, I am perfectly readj to vote upon it,

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. Mr. President, I will say to the Sen
ator that in view of the feeling of some of the Senators about 
the matter, I am going at the proper time to move that the 
Senate take a recess until to-morrow at 12 o'clock. 

Mr. HITCHCOCK. Before the Senator makes that motion I 
ask tor a reprint of the bill showing the committee amendment 
in italics and the amendments adopted thereto in the Com
mittee of the Whole printed in small ca-pitals. I ask that the 
bill be reprinted and ready for the \isc of the Senate to-morrow 
morning. , 

Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. I join in that request. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER. That order will be made, with-

out objection. 
Mr. FLETCHER. Mr. President, before any action is taken 

may I ask the Senator from Nebraska if he would be willing, 
on page 2, line 12 of his proposed substitute, in case that should 
be adopted, to change the word " signed " to the word " acted," 
so that it would read: 

Not legally qualified or authorized to give a formal legal contract, 
except where such officer has acted as the representative of a superior
officer— 

Instead of "signed"? 
Mr. HITCHCOCK. Yes; I have no objection to that. 
The PRESIDING OFFICER (Mr. OVEBMAN in the chair). 

Without objection, the amendment to the amendment is 
agreed to. 

Mr. MoKELLAR. Mr. President, on yesterday I asked to Lave 
inserted in the EECOBD certain testimony taken from the evi
dence of Mr. Charles A. Rice. Only a portion of that testimony 
was inserted; nnd I ask unanimous consent to have the re
mainder of it inserted now as a part of my remarks. 

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without objection, it will be so 
ordered. 

Mr. SMOOT. The Senator only wishes to have the additional 
testimony inserted? 

Mr. McKELIAR. That is all; just the additional testimony. 
The matter referred to is us follows: 

DXEING INDCSIBI. 
The statement of Mr. Charles A. Bice is as follows : 

STATEMENT OF MB. CHABLHS A. BICE. 
.Senator MCKELLAK. Mr. Rice, what position do you occupy with the

Government ? 
Mr. RICE. I am chief of the cotton converting section of the cotton

goods branch in the Quartermaster General's Office.
Senator MCKELLAB. HOW long liavo yon been there? 
Mr. RICE. I came to Washington tne latter part of February and 

started in the very last of February. 
Senator MCKELLAR. Started in this present section? 
Mr. RICE. Yes, sir. 
Senator MCKELLAH. ITna you been connected with the Ciovermuent

before in any way? 
Mr. RICE. Not at ali. 
Senator MCKELI.AT.. What wns your firm. In New Xorlc?
Mr. RICE. The firm of Myrlck & Rice. 
Senator McKBLLin. Arc you connected in any way with that firm 

now? 
Mr. RICE. Not at all, sir.
Senator MCKELLAR. DO you own any stock in It? 
Mr. RICE. NO, sir; none whatever. In fact, it was a partnership—* 

it was not a stock company—acting as agents. 
Senator MCKELLAH. And you have disposed o£ all agency you had

with the firm ? 
Mr. RICH. I have. 
Senator MCKELLAB. DO you expect to go Into it after the war? 
Mr. RICE. I can not say as to that. I mean, I have not any agree

ment to; none whatever with Mr. Myrlck. In fact, that all depends.
I can not say what I would do or will do after that—after the war is 
over. 

Senator MCKSLLAH. Have you done any business with that firm since 
you have been in the employ of the Government? 

Sir. RICE. I am doing business with concerns that they represent. 
Senator. MCKELLAR. With concerns that they represent. To what 

extent arc you doing business with firms that they represent?
Mr. RICK. Only to the extent that I consider that they arc equipped 

to handle certain lines of work thnt have been needed; that is, along
the lines of sulphur dyeing. 

Senator MCKELLAR. Will you explain your method o( contracting in
the sulphur-dyeing industry? 

Mr. lira?. My personal plan when I took hold of it ivas to sot n 
statement as to the equipment of all the -finishers, aud knowing what
the equipment should be from the practical point of view I lined up 
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the contractors ail over the country as to their equipment, as to wkl 
machinery aixl narrow machinery and what character of machines;
they had for dyeing of light and heavy goods, and theu later I mad* 
a personal investigation, a personal inspection of these plants in con 
nection with the inspectors, the chief Inspectors of the depot quarter 
master: ami then I sent out lists asking quotations from all contractor! 
whom I considered capable of handling this business, and apportione< 
out the material to the lowest bidders, considering, of course, theii 
equipment and their organization, as to their being capable of handlin 
this material, and apportioned out the business. 

Senator MCKSLLAR. Was It done on the competitive basis'? 
Mr. RICE. It is not; always. 
Senator MCKELLAB. What methods do you pursue? Do you let it t 

the lowest bidder? 
Mr. BICE. I do, provided I consider they are equipped properly and 

understand the handling of this particular kind of work. 
Senator MCKBLLAB. Can the dye operators of the country do all the 

Government work without any trouble? 
Mr. Rice. Without any additional equipment. 
Senator MCKBLLAB. IS there sufficient now to do it? 
Mr. KICK. I so consider. In fact, It has been so, and I believe it Is so,
Senator MCKELLAB. Why would not the cheaper plan for the Govern

ment be to ask for sealed bids and give It to the lowest bidder who wa« 
responsible? 

Mr. RICE. Of course. I do not know that I am correct on this, but my
position is that I believe the dyeing and finishing business is somewhat 
different from advertising for a supply of boots and shoes, or even cotton 
goods, i know that the dyeing and finishing business especially, under 
present conditions and in such conditions as we have had during this 
war, is a business that has got to be very carefully handled ; you have to 
i*onsider the personnel and the equipment, as to whether these firms are 
able lo handle bleaching or dyeing—on account of varying cotton mate-
rials and chemicals and dyestuffs and the various manufactures of chemi
cals and 

* * * * • • * 
Senator MCKELLAE. But, at the same time, Mr. Rice, the manufactur

ing concerns and the liouses that you formerly represented as sales agent 
and broker are receiving many contracts under you. 

Mr. Rice. No; but a very small amount. 
Senator MCKBLLAB. And the same thing is true of Mr. Bailey. I am 

talking to you in all frankness. Complaints have come in that you 
both came down here, as I believe, as dollar a-ycar men, and that you 
wore connected with these firms. 

Mr. BAILEY. I did ; Mr. Rice did also. 
Senator MCKEIX.AU. Maybe not. Maybe he came in after any necessity

for the dollar-a-year men in the Quartermaster Department. 
Mr. BAILS*-. Yes; I think so. 
Senator MCKELLAK. But, anyway, it is claimed by your competitors,

•>i" men who have been your competitors, that by reason of your posi
tion you say which contractors shall get and which contractors shall 
not get a particular job. Just take the particular Illustration that Mr. 
Rice made a while ago. lie :iskcd for quotations on the dyeing of 
khaki cloth, and numerous bids were made at 4 cents, and the Sayles 
Co., I believe, put in a quotation of 4.75 cents; and Mr. Rice, after 
jtoins over it, said that he would give it to Mr. Snyles, but be must 
I>at if. at the 4 cents. Now. yon can easily understand bow every bidder 
who bid 4 cents feels that Mr. IUce ought never to have done that;
that they were the cause of the Government getting it at 4 cents ; and 
they ought to have had It at 4 cents. 

Mr. DONALD. They bad all they could handle without it. 
Mr. RICR. They had all they wanted first. 
Senator MCKELLAB. They do not feel so. They would not have put 

those figures in if they had not felt that they could do it, and they
feel that they are just as competent to know what they can do as 
you gentleman here in Washington; and they do not feel as if they
had had a square deal about it; and one of them said to me that at 
the. very time you gave this contract to the Sayles Co., the Sayles Co. 
was filled up, and really was delayed In the getting out of these goods,
whereas they were open and able to deliver to the Government quicker. 

Mr. RICE. NO. 
Senator MCKELLAB. Now, those arc the practical questions that con-

front you gentlemen here this morning. We want to be absolutely fair, 
now, and we want to protect the Government and we want to be fair 
to everybody alike. My opinion Is that a system ougbt to be insti
tuted that will be fair, and such that no man can say that the Govern
ment's agents are not treating him fnirly. Now, we mnst make it so 
that no man can say that, and that is whnt the Navy has done. We 
ought to follow the Navy's lend in the proposition. 

Mr. RICE. I think yo\i will always have that. Senator. 
Senator MCKELLAR. Who is the Southbridge Printing Co.? 
Mr. RICE. A concern at Southbridgc, Mass. They have been in sulphur 

tlvetng for the last two years or more. 
.Senator MCKELLAB. Who owns it? 
Mr. RICB. Mr. Schuster, Mr. Ileyward, Mr. Saunders—James A. 

Saundcrs—U. A. Rice, and Mr. Myrick. Mr. Hartley had some stock in 
there. 

Seuator MCKELLAB. Who is Mr. R. A. Rice? 
Mr. RICH, lie is a brother of mine. 
Senator MCKBLLAB. He is still interested in it? 
Mr. RICE. Yea; he is still interested in it. 
Senator MCKELLAB. What amount of stock does he own ? 
Mr. RICE. It Is my recollection, something like 75 shares. I would 

not state exactly. Of course, that is of record. 
Senator MCKELLAB. What interest did you have in the business before 

you came down here? 
Mr. RICH. I had about a little over one-quarter of the stock. 
Senator MCKII.LAR. llow much is it capitalized at ? 
Mr. RICH. $136,000. 
Senator MCKBLLAB. HOW much, in contracts, has that concern got? 
Mr. RICB. I believe about, all told, during the year—of course I can 

give you an exact account of it. 
Senator MCKELLAB. I would be glad to have it. 
Mr. RICB. About 3,000,000 yards. 
Senator MCKBLLAB. 8,000,000 yards? 
Mr. RICB. The recent contract, the gas-defense contract, they are 

doing eome of the paraflnlng for the gas defense. 
Senator MCKBLLAB. What did you do with your stock? To whom 

did you sell it? 
Mr. RICB. TO my wife. The Quartermaster's Department stated that 

should be done, and I transferred it to my wife. 
Senator MCKBLLAB. YOU did not sell it to her, did you ? 
Mr. RICB. I just transferred it over for $2. 
Senator MCKELLAR. You just put it In her mitt , so you would not be 

Interested in it? 

. Mr. RICE. Yes; I transferred it over to her. In other words, it be-
longs to her. 

. Senator MCKELLAB. IS there any other company you arc connected 
with which you transferred to your wife the stock in? 

Mr. KICK. Yes; I had some stock of the Fiskdale Finishing Co. 
Senator MCKELLAR. What is the capital of that company? 
Mr. RICB. The capital is $200,000 preferred and $300,000 common. 
Senator MCKELLAR. And what was your interest in that? 
Mr. RICE. My recollection is that it was a little over a quarter in

terest. 
Senator MCKELLAB. And you transferred that to your wife? 
Mr. RICB. That was in the common stock of that company ; and I had,

I think, about $15,000, if I recall, of preferred stock. I turned that 
over to my wife. 

Senator MCKBLLAB. Have you done any business with that company? 
Mr. RICB. Yes, sir. 
Senator MCKBLLAK. HOW much have you allotted to them? 
Mr. RICE. I should say about 8,000,000 yards during the year. 
Senator MCKELLAR. Have those contracts been filled? 
Mr. RICE. Not all of them. They are working on them now. In fact, 

some of the material has been delivered to them. Gray mills arc behind 
on the gray contracts. 

Senator MCKELLAB. Are there any other companies with which you 
•were connected? 

Mr. RICE. NO, sir; those are the only two companies I had owned 
any stock in. 

Senator MCKELLAB. Your partnership was with Mr. Myrick? 
Mr. RICE. Mr. Myrick. 
Senator MCKELLAB. What contract have you with Mr. Myrick about 

your firm bwiness while you are down here? 
Mr. RICE. None whatever. I sold out to Mr. Myrick. I have resigned 

and am no longer a member of the firm of Myrick & Rice. I am out 
of it entirely. 

Senator MCKELLAB. Who are the owners of that firm ? 
Mr. RICE. Mr. Myrick is the sole owner now of the firm. 
Senator MCKELLAB. Would you object to stating upon what terms 

you sold out that business? 
Mr. RICE. Certainly; I will be glad to state. I sold out of the firm 

for $5,000, and all the interest that I had there for $15,000, the total 
amounting to $20,000. The $15,000, of course, was pay for back con-
tracts on commercial business; nothing whatever on any Government 
business. 

Senator MCKELLAK. When were these transactions; last March, be-
fore you came down here? 

Mr. RICE. Last March ; yes. 
Senator MCKELLAB. At whose instance did you come? 
Mr. RICE. At the request of Mr. Albert Scott and Mr. Miller Wilson. 
Senator MCKBLLAK. What has become of Mr. Scott? What is he 

doing now? 
Mr. RICB. I could not say. He is in Boston. I could not tell you 

just what he is doing. 
Senator MCKKLLAII. Mr. Scott was Interested in nearly all these 

mills, was he not? 
Mr. RICE. I could not say. 
Senator MCKELLAR. YOU did not know that he had large interests 

in them? 
Mr. RICE. NO,sir; I did not know anything about it. In fact, I 

had never met Mr. Scott bnt once In 1917. 
Senator MCKELLAB. Mr. Scott, I do not believe, had any interest In 

any of these competing plants, but he had interests in all the cotton 
manufactories, or was represented in them. 

Mr. DONALD. Only a very few, Senator. 
Senator MCKELLAB. That Is neither here nor there. It does not 

make any difference. 
Mr. DONALD. Of his firm, I,ockwood Green was agent for three or 

four or five cotton mills. 
Mr. BAILEY. Yes. 
Senator MCKBLLAR. NOW. what dyeing concerns among those you 

have here were represented by Myrick & Rice? 
Mr. RICE. On the commercial business only, the Martin Dyeing & 

Finishing Co. We never had anything to do with Government 
business. 

Senator MCKELLAB. The Martin Dyeing & Finishing Co. at Bridgcton ? 
Mr. Ricx. Yes. The Government business was entirely handled by

Mr. Fred S. Bennett. 
Senator MCKELLAH. Where is he? 
Mr. RICIB. In New York City. 
Senator MCKELLAR. He represents the Martin Dyeing & Finishing Co.t 
Mr. RICE. He is the representative of the Martin company on Govern

ment business only. 
Senator MCKELLAB. He never has beeu connected with the Government 

in any way? 
Mr. RICE. NO : not to my knowledge. 
Mr. BAILEY. Never. 
Senator MCKELLAB. Was he ever here in Washington? 
Mr. BAILEY. Not iii any official capacity. 
Senator MCKELLAR. Did he work here for the Government at all. 
Mr. BAILEY. NO, sir. 
Senator MCKELLAR. In an unofficial capacity? 
Mr. BAILEY. On. no, sir. He was au original member of the cotton-

goods committee of the Council of National Defense. 
Senator MCKELLAB. That is, of the old Council of National Defense? 
Mr. BAILEY. Yes. • 
Senator MCKELLAB. HOW long did he serve with that committee? 
Mr. BAILEY. He served from April until June. I am speaking from 

recollection. He resigned very early from that. 
Senator MCKBLLAB. SO that he was connected with this cotton-goods 

;ommittee of the Council of National Defense, which had in charge these 
things ? 

Mr. BAILEY. He was on the cotton-goods committee of the committea 
>n supply, the subsidiary committee representing the industry. 

Senator MCKELLAB. Were there any other firms that your firm repre
tented, Mr. Rice, besides the Martin Dyeing & Finishing Co.? 

Mr. RICK. Yes; the Mansfield Bleachery. 
Senator MCKELLAB. At Mansfield, Mass.? 
Mr. RICB. At Mansfield, Mass. 
Senator MCKELLAR. Any others? 
Mr. RICB. The Southbridee Printing Co.• the Fiskdale Finishing Co.;

the Slatersville Finishing Co., at Slatersville, R. I.; the Edgewater Dye
ng & Finishing Co.. of Philadelphia. 

Senator MCKELLAB. The Martin, the Mansfield, the Southbridge, the 
JatersvlHe; and were there any others? 

Mr. Rica. The Edgewater. I believe there were eight. 
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Sena toy McKsr.LAK. You have named six of tlifin. Have all these con- Also tiie following resolution: cerns gotten contracts from the Government? 

Give to these Representatives of our people clear minds, 
conscientious scruples, high ideals, that they may hallow Tliy 
name in all the legislative acts they may record in history. In 
the spirit of the Lord Jesus Christ. Amen. 

The Journal of the proceedings of yesterday was read and ap
proved. 

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE. 

A message from the Senate, by Mr. Waldorf, its enrolling
clerk, auuounced that the Senate had passed bill of the follow
ing title, iu which the concurrence of the House of Representa
tives was requested : 

S. 4887. An act making an appropriation for a sewer system 
at the Carson Indian School at Stewart, Nev. 

The message also announced that the Senate had agreed to 
the amendments of the House of Representatives to the bill 
(S. 2784) to authorize the purchase by the city of McMinnville, 
Oreg., of certain lands formerly embraced in the grant to the 
Oregon & California Railroad Co. and revested in the United 
States by the act approved June 9, 1916. 

The message also announced that the Senate had passed the 
following resolutions: 

Senate resolution 430. 
Resolved, That the Senate has heard with profound sorrow the an

nouueement of the death of the Hon. EDWARD EVERETT BOBBINS, late a 
Representative from the State of Pennsylvania. 

Resolved, That a committee of seven Senators be appointed by the 
Vice President to join the committee appointed on the part of the 
House of Representatives to attend the funeral of the deceased. 

Resolved, That the Secretary communicate a copy of these resolutions 
to the House of Representatives. 

Resolved. That as a further mark of respect to the memory of the 
deceased the Senate do now adjourn. 

And that the Vice President, under the second resolution, had 
appointed Mr. PKNROSK, Mr. KING, Mr. OVERMAN, Mr. WAEBEN, 
Mr. BAIKD, Mr. THOMPSON, and Mr. KNOX as said committee on 
the part of the Senate. 

Also the following resolution: 
Senate resolution 422. 

Resolved, That the Senate expresses its profound sorrow in the death 
of Hon. KOBERT F. BBOCSSABD, late a Senator from the State of
Louisiana. 

Resolved, That as a mark of respect to the memory of the deceased
the Senate, in pursuance of an order heretofore made, assembles to
enable his associates to pay proper tribute to bis high character and
distinguished public services. 

Resolved, That the Secretary communicate these resolutions to the
House of Representatives, and transmit a copy thereof to the faintly of
the deceased. 

Resolved, That as a further mark of respect to the memory of the
deceased the Senate do now adjourn. 

Mr. Kic». No, sir.

Senator MCKKIXAR. Which ones have not?

Mr. HICB. The Martin Co.

Senator MCKEIXAK. The Martin Co. has not?

Mr. Ricic. The Martin Co. has had contracts. 
.Senator MCKEIXAU. All right, sir. 
Mr. BICB. The Edgewater has had contracts; the Southbriilgc and the 

Fiskdale hove had r-cntracts. 
Senator MCKEIXAB. And the Mansfield? 
Mr. HICK. They had one or two contracts in the spring. 
Senator MCKKLLAU. The Slatersvllle? 
Mr. RICE. Only one or two, recently. We have been giving them some 

recently. 
Mr. CHAMBERLAIN. I move that the Senate take a recess 

until 12 o'clock noou to-morrow. 
Mr. FRELINGHUYSEN. Mr. President, before the recess is 

taken I think we should point out to the Senator from Nevada 
that the amendment which lie proposes to this bill undoubtedly
will delay the bill in conference. This is one of the most im
portant bills which has come before the Senate. It involves the 
settlement of nearly $2,000,000,000 worth of contracts. This 
legislation should have been passed two months ago; and I do 
hope the Senator will not press that amendment on this bill 
when the time comes. 

HKCKSS. 

Mr. CHAMBKKLAIN. I renew my motion for a recess until 
12 o'clock noon to-morrow. 

The motion was agreed to; and (at 4 o'clock and 50 minutes 
p. in.) the Senate took a recess until to-morrow, Wednesday, 
January 29, 191!>, at 12 o'clock meridian. 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES. 
TUKSDAY, January 28,1919. 

The House nu-t at 11 o'clock a. m. 
The Chaplain, Kev. Heury N. Couden, D. D., offered the fol

lowing prayer: 
I<end us, O Lord God, our Heavenly Father, by Thy counsels 

through the remaining congressional hours of this day. 

roads and protectively to the public welfare; and 
.Whereas we feel that the Congress of the United States will, by being

informed of public sentiment, be better.able to solve ami direct the 
course of the problem, and recognizing the necessity, as expressed in
the President's address, of relinquishing control of the railroads as
quickly an possible and the certainty of conditions that said release 
of the railroads by the Federal Government would immediately estab
lish ; therefore, be It 
Resolved "by the Senate of this the Thirty-sixth Legislature of the 

State of Texas, That we favor the return of the railroads to their owners 
as immediately as it can be accomplished without confusion or losses;
be it further 

Resolved, That wo believe and think private ownership under strong
Government coatrol and regulation in service, income, and disbursements 
is desirable, and we do not believe Federal Government ownership of 
railroads is for the best interests of the people at this time; be it further 

Resolved, That the secretary of the senate forward properly authen
ticated copies of this resolution to each United States Senator and Mem
ber of Congress from Texas for their consideration, and a copy to the 
chief clerks of the house of representatives and the senate of each State. 

EXTENSION OF REMARKS. 

Mr. MONTAGUE. Mr. Sneaker, I ask - unanimous, consent to 
extend my remarks in the RECORD by printing the letter of Chief 
Justice Taney, under date of February 16, 1863, known as his 
remonstrance against the imposition of an income tax upon judi
cial salaries, and also the opinion of Attorney General Hoar in 
relation to the same. I do this for the benefit of the conferees 
of the House and the few lurking lovers of the Constitution 
throughout the country. 

The SPEAKER. Is there objection? 
There was no objection. 

ADMINISTRATION OF THE OVERMAN ACT. 

Mr. GOULD rose. 
The SPEAKER. For what purpose does the gentleman from 

New York rise? „ 
Mr. GOULD. I rise to make a privileged motion, Mr. Sneaker. 

I move to discharge the Committee on the Judiciary from fur
ther consideration of House resolution 481. . 
. Mr. GARNER. Mr. Speaker, is the gentleman recognized for 
that purpose? 

Senate resolution 423. 
Resolved, That the Senate expresses its profound sorrow In the death 

of Hon. WILLIAM HDGHKS, late a Senator from the State of New Jersey. 
.Resolved, That as <i mark of respect to the memory of the deceased 

the Senate, hi pursuance of an order heretofore made, assembles to 
enable his associates to pay proper tribute to his high character and 
distinguished public services. 

Resolved, That the Secretary communicate these resolutions to the 
House of Representatives and tran.vmit a copy thereof to the family of 
the deceased. 

Resolved, That as a further mark of respect to the memory of the 
deceased the Senate do now adjourn. 

SENATE BILL XKKERRED. 

Under clause 2 of Rule XXIV, Senate bill of the following title 
was taken from the Speakers table and referred to Its appro
priate committee, as indicated below: 

S. 4887. An act making an appropriation for a sewer system 
at the Carson Indian School at Stewart, Nev.; to the Committee 
on Indian Affairs. 

THK RAILROADS. 

Mr. GARNER. Mr. Speaker, I want to insert in the RECORD 
some resolutions passed by the State Senate of Texas touching 
the railroad question. 

The SPEAKER. Is there objection? 
Mr. DENISON. Reserving the right to object, Mr. Speaker, 

will the gentleman state what is the nature of the resolutions? 
Mr. GARNER. They express the opinion that the railroads 

ought to be turned back to the owners of them. If the gentleman 
wants to know the substance of it, that is what it is. 

The SPEAKER. Is there objection? 
There was no, objection. 
Following are the resolutions referred to: 

AVhereas postwar and reconstruction condition* liave brought these
United States of America muny problems of great import, and perhaps
the one of greatest importance is the. question of Government owner-
ship of the railways of the United States ; and 

Whereas our great democratic President, In whose wisdom we have every 
reason to confide, in his address to Congress on December 2, said :
" The question which causes me the greatest concern is the question of
the policy to be adopted toward the railroads. I frankly turn to 
vour counsel upon it " ; and after making other illuminating state
inents on this subject, further says. " 1-et me say at once that 1 havo 
no answer ready. The only thing that is perfectly clear to me is that
it Is not fair either to the publi: or to the owners of the railroads to
leave the question unanswered and (hat it will presently become my
duty to relinquish control of the roads, even before the expiration of
the statutory period, unless there shall appear some clear prospect in
the meantime of a legislative solution. Their release would at least
produce one element of its solution,, namely, certainty and a quick
stimulation of private initiative " : and 

Whereas in wisdom, so characteristic of the man, our President has 
turned to Congress for counsel on this momentous subject, In his keeft 
sense of justice endeavoring to deal fairly with the owners of the rail-


